
From: BTPEnvironmental <BTPEnvironmental@basf.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, May 6, 2025 2:48 PM 
To: Kyle Murray; Tammy  Villarreal 
Cc: Lois McQuade; Theresa  Hulvey; Jacob Benfield 
Subject: RE: [EXT] Working Draft Permit -- FOP O2551/Project 36831, BASF 

TOTALEnergies Petrochemicals, LLC 

Kyle, 

We finished our review. We offer no additional comments. I believe would should be ready to proceed to 
towards public notice. 

Thank you, 

Jacob Benfield, P.E. 
Sr. Environmental & Sustainability Specialist 

Mobile: +1.915.433.8774,  
Email: jacob.benfield@basf.com or btpenvironmental@basf.com  
Postal Address: BASF TotalEngeries Petrochemicals LLC,  P.O. Box 2506,  Port Arthur, TX 77643, USA 

BASF Corporation 

• We take ownership of our safety culture.

• We share and implement best practices.
• We are empowered to stop

From: Kyle Murray <Kyle.Murray@tceq.texas.gov>  
Sent: Friday, May 2, 2025 1:57 PM 
To: Tammy Villarreal <TVillarreal@clara-vista.com> 
Cc: BTPEnvironmental <BTPEnvironmental@basf.com>; Lois McQuade <LMcQuade@clara-vista.com>; 
Theresa Hulvey <thulvey@clara-vista.com>; Jacob Benfield <jacob.benfield@basf.com> 
Subject: RE: [EXT] Working Draft Permit -- FOP O2551/Project 36831, BASF TOTALEnergies 
Petrochemicals, LLC 

Good afternoon all, 

I have attached the revised WDP that now incorporates requirements for control device X-
8501 and your additional comments from our previous correspondence. Please take the 
time to review the document and provide me with any further comments you may have by 
Friday, May 9th. If you have no comments, please indicate your approval and we will 
proceed towards public notice. Thank you and have a great weekend! 
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Sincerely, 

Kyle J. Murray 
Permit Reviewer 
OA/Air Permits Division/OP Section 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
MC 163, P.O. Box 13087 
Austin, TX 78711-3087 
kyle.murray@tceq.texas.gov 

Phone:   (512) 239-1279 
Fax:         (512) 239-1400 

How are we doing?  Fill out our online customer satisfaction survey at 

www.tceq.texas.gov/customersurvey 

mailto:kyle.murray@tceq.texas.gov
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Flinks.govdelivery.com%2Ftrack%3Ftype%3Dclick%26enid%3DZWFzPTEmbWFpbGluZ2lkPTIwMTgxMTAyLjk3MDg5MTgxJm1lc3NhZ2VpZD1NREItUFJELUJVTC0yMDE4MTEwMi45NzA4OTE4MSZkYXRhYmFzZWlkPTEwMDEmc2VyaWFsPTE3MzIwMjU1JmVtYWlsaWQ9ZGlhbm5lLmFuZGVyc29uQHRjZXEudGV4YXMuZ292JnVzZXJpZD1kaWFubmUuYW5kZXJzb25AdGNlcS50ZXhhcy5nb3YmZmw9JmV4dHJhPU11bHRpdmFyaWF0ZUlkPSYmJg%3D%3D%26%26%26104%26%26%26http%3A%2F%2Fwww.tceq.texas.gov%2Fgoto%2Fcustomersurvey&data=05%7C02%7CKyle.Murray%40tceq.texas.gov%7C9ed4748b4ad945c08dc608dd8cd6ee2f%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638821578353432342%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=DQOYekOGHjUI4fbeuao1FbAMdXe3yU08oixitVbSLak%3D&reserved=0
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From: Tammy  Villarreal <TVillarreal@clara-vista.com> 
Sent: Friday, April 25, 2025 10:11 AM 
To: Kyle Murray 
Cc: BTPEnvironmental; Lois McQuade; Theresa  Hulvey; Tammy  Villarreal; 

jacob.benfield@basf.com 
Subject: RE: [EXT] Working Draft Permit -- FOP O2551/Project 36831, BASF 

TOTALEnergies Petrochemicals, LLC 
Attachments: OP Cro Signed 2025 4 24pdf.pdf; UA12 Tables 4a and 4b.pdf 

Good morning Mr. Murray, 

On behalf of BASF TotalEnergies Petrochemicals, LLC (BTP), we are submitting a signed 
OP-CRO1 form as well as pages 32 and 33 of the OP-UA12 form (Tables 4a and 4b) so 
NSPS VV requirements for control device X-8501 can be associated with Unit IDs F-1 and 
F-4.

In addition, we have the following comments on the draft permit received on April 10, 2025. 

1. Please change 'Nafta' to 'NAFTA' on the first page of the permit, after
"AUTHORIZING THE OPERATION OF"

2. We noticed that the BTP's Working Draft Permit request #1a noted in the November
5, 2024 response to you and ultimately included in the November 6, 2024 WDP, was
omitted from this version of the WDP.  Please add the following to the New Source
Review Authorization Reference Table:

a. Add a ”*" to GHGPSDTX3 and a footnote that reads "*For reference, EPA
Issued Permit PSD-TX-903-GHG has been assigned TCEQ permit number
GHGPSDTX3." (BTP's existing TV Permit has this reference.)

Thanks, 

Tammy 
Tammy Villarreal, P.E. 
Clara Vista Environmental, LLC 
(281) 728-4093



TCEQ-10045 (APD-ID 27v6, Revised 02/25) OP-UA12 
This form is for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and 
may be revised periodically. (Title V Release 07/23) Page ______ of ______  

Fugitive Emission Unit Attributes 
Form OP-UA12 (Page 32) 

Federal Operating Permit Program 
Table 4a:  Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 60 (40 CFR Part 60) 

Subpart VV:  Standards of Performance for Equipment Leaks of VOC in the Synthetic Organic Chemicals Manufacturing Industry for which 
Construction, Reconstruction, or Modification Commenced After January 5, 1981, and on or Before November 7, 2006 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

 
Date Permit No. Regulated Entity No. 

4/24/25 O-2551 RN100216977 
 

Unit ID No. SOP Index No. 
Produces 
Chemicals Affected Facility 

Construction/ 
Modification 

Date 
Compliance 

Option Design Capacity 

Produces Heavy 
Liquid 

Chemicals 

Beverage 
Alcohol 

Production 

F-1 60VV-ALL YES YES 81-06 60VV 1000+ NO NO 

F-4 60VV-ALL YES YES 81-06 60VV 1000+ NO NO 

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

 
  



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

Form OP-UA12 (Page 33) 
Federal Operating Permit Program 

Table 4b:  Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 60 (40 CFR Part 60) 
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
 
  Title 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart VV Fugitive Unit Components    

  Any Component    Pumps   

Unit ID No. SOP Index No. 
Equipment in 
VOC Service Vacuum Service VOC Service 

Light Liquid 
Service EEL EEL ID No. 

Complying 
with § 60.482-2 

F-1 60VV-ALL YES NO NO YES NO  YES 

F-4 60VV-ALL YES NO NO YES NO  YES 

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

 
 











Just a follow-up email recapping our meeting this morning: 
Pages 41-42 (Table 4j) were filled out correctly. However, we need some of the general 
applicability questions to be filled out as well in order to pick up the closed vent and 
control device requirements currently missing from your permit. Normally the “ALL” index 
number does not need for these questions to be filled out, but if adding the control device 
and closed vent requirements, it is needed due to the way our logic system works. 

Please fill out the questions on Page 32 of the OP-UA12 (Table 4a) and the Equipment in 
VOC Service question on Page 33 (Table 4b) for both Unit IDs (F-1 and F-4). The current 
index number “60VV-ALL” will still be used. 

Please complete this by Friday, April 25th, and feel free to reach out if you have any 
further questions. Thank you! 

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

From: Kyle Murray 
Sent: Wednesday, April 16, 2025 10:47 AM 
To: Lois McQuade 
Cc: Theresa Hulvey 
Subject: RE: [EXT] Working Draft Permit -- FOP O2551/Project 36831, BASF TOTALEnergies 
Petrochemicals, LLC 

Good morning,

mailto:kyle.murray@tceq.texas.gov


Apologies for missing your call, it has been a busy morning. I will look into why these 
requirements are missing (or potentially missing) and we can have a call discussing this 
tomorrow. I have availability from 10:00 am to 12:00 or from 1:30 to 2:30 pm. Let me know 
what works for you. Thank you! 

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
Sent: Tuesday, April 15, 2025 2:30 PM 
To: Lois McQuade <LMcQuade@clara-vista.com>; Tammy Villarreal <TVillarreal@clara-vista.com> 
Cc: BTPEnvironmental <BTPEnvironmental@basf.com>; jacob.benfield@basf.com; Theresa Hulvey 
<thulvey@clara-vista.com> 
Subject: RE: [EXT] Working Draft Permit -- FOP O2551/Project 36831, BASF TOTALEnergies 
Petrochemicals, LLC

Good afternoon Lois, 

From: Lois McQuade <LMcQuade@clara-vista.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, April 15, 2025 3:01 PM 
To: Kyle Murray <Kyle.Murray@tceq.texas.gov> 
Cc: Theresa Hulvey <thulvey@clara-vista.com> 
Subject: RE: [EXT] Working Draft Permit -- FOP O2551/Project 36831, BASF TOTALEnergies 
Petrochemicals, LLC

Kyle

10 am tomorrow works good for us.  I’ll send out a teams meeting notice.

Lois

mailto:kyle.murray@tceq.texas.gov
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Flinks.govdelivery.com%2Ftrack%3Ftype%3Dclick%26enid%3DZWFzPTEmbWFpbGluZ2lkPTIwMTgxMTAyLjk3MDg5MTgxJm1lc3NhZ2VpZD1NREItUFJELUJVTC0yMDE4MTEwMi45NzA4OTE4MSZkYXRhYmFzZWlkPTEwMDEmc2VyaWFsPTE3MzIwMjU1JmVtYWlsaWQ9ZGlhbm5lLmFuZGVyc29uQHRjZXEudGV4YXMuZ292JnVzZXJpZD1kaWFubmUuYW5kZXJzb25AdGNlcS50ZXhhcy5nb3YmZmw9JmV4dHJhPU11bHRpdmFyaWF0ZUlkPSYmJg%3D%3D%26%26%26104%26%26%26http%3A%2F%2Fwww.tceq.texas.gov%2Fgoto%2Fcustomersurvey&data=05%7C02%7CKyle.Murray%40tceq.texas.gov%7C10a50baf6acb48d4288208dd840b6c25%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638811907841691959%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=vZ0fu13Gym2%2F5ogZlW6X8UR%2FMCmjlxVYUl05l8uTrU0%3D&reserved=0
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Subject: RE: [EXT] Working Draft Permit -- FOP O2551/Project 36831, BASF TOTALEnergies 
Petrochemicals, LLC

Kyle, 

In regards to the phone message I left earlier today, the following is the previously submitted draft 
permit comment that we still have for the draft permit (FOP O2551/Project 36831): 

• BTP submitted an updated OP-UA12 form for F-1 and F-4 on March 19, 2025.  Pages 41 and
42 of the OP-UA12 form lists control device X-8501 for both Unit ID F-1 and F-4.  How is this
represented in the Title V permit? – Applicable Requirements should now be updated
according to the new UA Form data for these units.

The referenced UA12 pages required that we identify our flare control, Flare ID X-8501.  However for 
Chapter NSPS VV, we do not see any corresponding flare control requirements and we are 
wondering if there are any citations such as 60.482-10 missing from the Title V permit.  

It may be easier to discuss our question/comment on a phone call.  Please let us know whey you 
may be available for a quick call.  Tomorrow, Wednesday, is fairly open for us. 

Thank You, 

Lois McQuade 

Clara Vista Environmental, LLC 

(832) 829-5662

From: Lois McQuade <LMcQuade@clara-vista.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, April 15, 2025 12:07 PM 
To: Kyle Murray <Kyle.Murray@tceq.texas.gov>; Tammy Villarreal <TVillarreal@clara-vista.com> 
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

mailto:Kyle.Murray@tceq.texas.gov


Subject: RE: [EXT] Working Draft Permit -- FOP O2551/Project 36831, BASF TOTALEnergies 
Petrochemicals, LLC

Good afternoon all, 

Thank you for the updates and your comments. Please see attached revised WDP and my 
notes in green regarding updates below. Please review the revised WDP and provide me 
with any further comments you may have by Thursday, April 17th. If you have no 
comments, please indicate your approval and we will proceed towards public notice. 
Thank you! 

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
Sent: Thursday, April 10, 2025 3:12 PM 
To: Tammy Villarreal <TVillarreal@clara-vista.com> 
Cc: BTPEnvironmental <BTPEnvironmental@basf.com>; jacob.benfield@basf.com; Theresa Hulvey 
<thulvey@clara-vista.com>; Lois McQuade <LMcQuade@clara-vista.com> 

mailto:kyle.murray@tceq.texas.gov


From: Tammy Villarreal <TVillarreal@clara-vista.com> 
Sent: Monday, April 7, 2025 8:21 AM 
To: Kyle Murray <Kyle.Murray@tceq.texas.gov> 
Cc: BTPEnvironmental <BTPEnvironmental@basf.com>; jacob.benfield@basf.com; Theresa 
Hulvey <thulvey@clara-vista.com>; Tammy Villarreal <TVillarreal@clara-vista.com>; Lois 
McQuade 
<LMcQuade@clara-vista.com> 
Subject: FW: [EXT] Working Draft Permit -- FOP O2551/Project 36831, BASF TOTALEnergies 
Petrochemicals, LLC

Good morning Mr. Murray, 

On behalf of BASF TotalEnergies Petrochemicals, LLC (BTP), we have the following 
comments/questions on the draft permit received on March 31, 2025. 

• Corrected Forms OP-2 and OP-SUMR are attached. – Incorporated new PBR authorizations
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

• Special Terms and Conditions (STC) number 22 and 23, on Page 10, of the draft permit
appears to be duplicates.  STC number 22 is detailed and is missing the requirements,
while STC number 23 appears to be a boilerplate language with no specific details. -
Updated

• It doesn’t appear that updates to the Major NSR Table submitted on March 19, 2025, were
included in the draft permit.  We are resubmitting the mark-ups in the attached word
document.  Updates are presented via red line strikeout. – Apologies, but I did not include
the updated table in the last revised WDP I sent you. It is now updated.

Please let us know if you have any questions. 

Best Regards, 

Tammy Villarreal, P.E. 

Clara Vista Environmental, LLC 

(281) 728-4093
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mailto:TVillarreal@clara-vista.com
mailto:Kyle.Murray@tceq.texas.gov
mailto:BTPEnvironmental@basf.com
mailto:jacob.benfield@basf.com
mailto:thulvey@clara-vista.com
mailto:TVillarreal@clara-vista.com
mailto:LMcQuade@clara-vista.com


From: Tammy  Villarreal <TVillarreal@clara-vista.com> 
Sent: Monday, April 7, 2025 8:21 AM 
To: Kyle Murray 
Cc: BTPEnvironmental; jacob.benfield@basf.com; Theresa  Hulvey; Tammy  

Villarreal; Lois McQuade 
Subject: FW: [EXT] Working Draft Permit -- FOP O2551/Project 36831, BASF 

TOTALEnergies Petrochemicals, LLC 
Attachments: OP-2 OP-SUMR_04012025.pdf; Major NSR Summary Table.docx 

Follow Up Flag: Follow up 
Flag Status: Completed 

Good morning Mr. Murray, 

On behalf of BASF TotalEnergies Petrochemicals, LLC (BTP), we have the following 
comments/questions on the draft permit received on March 31, 2025. 

• Corrected Forms OP-2 and OP-SUMR are attached.
• BTP submitted an updated OP-UA12 form for F-1 and F-4 on March 19, 2025.  Pages 41 and

42 of the OP-UA12 form lists control device X-8501 for both Unit ID F-1 and F-4.  How is this
represented in the Title V permit?

• Special Terms and Conditions (STC) number 22 and 23, on Page 10, of the draft permit
appears to be duplicates.  STC number 22 is detailed and is missing the requirements,
while STC number 23 appears to be a boilerplate language with no specific details.

• It doesn’t appear that updates to the Major NSR Table submitted on March 19, 2025, were
included in the draft permit.  We are resubmitting the mark-ups in the attached word
document.  Updates are presented via red line strikeout.

Please let us know if you have any questions. 

Best Regards, 
Tammy Villarreal, P.E. 
Clara Vista Environmental, LLC 
(281) 728-4093

mailto:Kyle.Murray@tceq.texas.gov


Date: 4/1/2025
Permit No: O-2551
Regulated Entity No.: 100216977
Company Name : BASF TOTALEnergies Petrochemicals LLC

New Unit ID No. Applicable Form NSR Authorization
1 MS-C No N/A OP-REQ1 N/A Provide updated Form OP-REQ1.
2 MS-C No See OP-PBRSUP See OP-PBRSUP See OP-PBRSUP Submittal of OP-PBRSUP

3 MS-C No N/A 36644
Incorporate the Permit 36644 alteration dated June 14, 2023, into the Title V operation 
permit. 

4 ADMIN-G No N/A 36644
Incorporate the Alternative Method of Control (AMOC) Plan, AMOC No. 220 dated April 
28, 2023, into the Title V operation permit.

5 MS-C No N-15
OP-2

UA-15
36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1

Add new scenario for existing process vents N-15 and N-15A and add 30 TAC Chapter 
115 applicability for sending a process vent stream to a flare that requires a recently 
approved AMOC.

6 MS-C No N-15A
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

7 MS-C No HONWWTP OP-2 36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1
Omit Group 1 MACT G wastewater requirements.  The source is subject to site-wide 
only MACT G requirements.  (Source is Group 2.)

8 MS-C No T-8201 OP-2 36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1
Omit Group 1 MACT G wastewater requirements.  The source is subject to site-wide 
only MACT G requirements.  (Source is Group 2.)

9 SIG-B No T-5702
OP-2

OP-REQ2
36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1

Omit NSPS NNN requirements.  The source is subject to 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart G and 
40 CFR Part 63, Subpart YY. 

Add negative applicability to 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart NNN.

10 SIG-B No R-2501X
OP-2

OP-REQ2
36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1

Omit NSPS RRR requirements.  The reactor does not produce any products listed in 
NSPS RRR and is not considered a process vent.   The source is a part of Unit ID 
HONWWTP which is a wastewater treatment system that is subject to 40 CFR Part 63, 
Subpart YY and 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart G.

Add negative applicability for 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart RRR.

11 ADMIN-A No TK-9601R OP-2 36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1
Update Unit ID to coincide with facility records.  Replace Unit ID TK-9601 with TK-
9601R.

12 ADMIN-A No D-3730X OP-2 36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1 Update Unit ID to coincide with facility records.  Replace Unit ID D-3780X with D-3730X.

13 MS-C No B-7240
OP-2

OP-UA6
36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1

Add 40 CFR 63 Subpart DDDDD detailed rules to B-7240 for compliance with 63 Subpart 
DDDDD.

14 MS-C No B-7280
OP-2

OP-UA6
36644, GHGPSDTX3, PSDTX903M5, 

N007M1
Add 40 CFR 63 Subpart DDDDD detailed rules to B-7280 for compliance with 63 Subpart 
DDDDD.

15 MS-C No B-7290
OP-2

OP-UA6
36644, GHGPSDTX3, PSDTX903M5, 

N007M1
Add 40 CFR 63 Subpart DDDDD detailed rules to B-7290 for compliance with 63 Subpart 
DDDDD.

Using the table below, provide a description of the revision.

Unit/Group Process

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality

Federal Operating Permit Program
Application for Permit Revision/Renewal

Form OP-2 -Table 2

Description of Changes and Provisional Terms and Conditions
Revision 

Code
Revision 

No.

TCEQ-10059 (APDG 5722v26, revised 03/22) OP-2  
This form is for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and
may be revised periodically. (Title V revised 03/10)



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

16 MS-C No N-12
OP-2

OP-UA6
OP-UA5

36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1
Add 40 CFR 63 Subpart DDDDD detailed rules to N-12 for compliance with 63 Subpart 
DDDDD.

17 MS-C No N-13
OP-2

OP-UA6
OP-UA5

36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1
Add 40 CFR 63 Subpart DDDDD detailed rules to N-13 for compliance with 63 Subpart 
DDDDD.

18 SIG-B No TK-2501B
OP-2

OP-REQ2
36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1 Add negative 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart Kb applicability.

19 SIG-B No TK-2501
OP-2

OP-REQ2
36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1 Add negative 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart Kb applicability.

20 MS-C No X-8502 OP-2 36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1 Remove scenarios associated with SOP Index No. 60A-1 and 60A-2

21 MS-C Yes T270596
OP-2

OP-SUMR
106.472/09/04/2000

Add storage vessel to GRPINORGSV.  Unit ID T270596 has the same regulatory 
applicability as GRPINORGSV.

22 MS-C Yes TK-7401 
OP-2

OP-SUMR
106.472/09/04/2000

Add storage vessel to GRPINORGSV.  Unit ID TK-7401 has the same regulatory 
applicability as GRPINORGSV.

23 MS-C Yes TK-7601
OP-2

OP-SUMR
106.472/09/04/2000

Add storage vessel to GRPINORGSV.  Unit ID TK-7601 has the same regulatory 
applicability as GRPINORGSV.

24 MS-C Yes TK-2493
OP-2

OP-SUMR
106.472/09/04/2000

Add storage vessel to GRPINORGSV.  Unit ID TK-2493 has the same regulatory 
applicability as GRPINORGSV.

25 MS-C Yes TK-2491
OP-2

OP-SUMR
106.472/09/04/2000

Add storage vessel to GRPINORGSV.  Unit ID TK-2491 has the same regulatory 
applicability as GRPINORGSV.

26 MS-C Yes TK-9604
OP-2

OP-SUMR
106.472/09/04/2000

Add storage vessel to GRPINORGSV.  Unit ID TK-9604 has the same regulatory 
applicability as GRPINORGSV.

27 MS-C Yes TK-9801
OP-2

OP-SUMR
106.472/09/04/2000

Add storage vessel to GRPINORGSV.  Unit ID TK-9801 has the same regulatory 
applicability as GRPINORGSV.

28 MS-C Yes TK-5273
OP-2

OP-SUMR
106.472/09/04/2000

Add storage vessel to GRPSV1K.  Unit ID TK-5273 has the same regulatory applicability 
as GRPSV1K.

29 MS-C Yes TK-5273X
OP-2

OP-SUMR
106.472/09/04/2000

Add storage vessel to GRPSV1K.  Unit ID TK-5273X has the same regulatory applicability 
as GRPSV1K.

30 MS-C Yes TK-5510 
OP-2

OP-SUMR
36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1

Add storage vessel to GRPSV1K.  Unit ID TK-5510 has the same regulatory applicability 
as GRPSV1K.

31 MS-C Yes T233674
OP-2

OP-SUMR
106.371/09/04/2000

Add storage vessel to GRPSV1K.  Unit ID T233674 has the same regulatory applicability 
as GRPSV1K.

32 MS-C Yes T233676
OP-2

OP-SUMR
106.371/09/04/2000

Add storage vessel to GRPSV1K.  Unit ID T233676 has the same regulatory applicability 
as GRPSV1K.

33 MS-C Yes T113596
OP-2

OP-SUMR
106.472/09/04/2000

Add storage vessel to GRPSV1K.  Unit ID T131632 has the same regulatory applicability 
as GRPSV1K.

34 MS-C Yes T131632
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

35 MS-C Yes T280047
OP-2

OP-SUMR
106.371/09/04/2000

Add storage vessel to GRPSV1K.  Unit ID T280047 has the same regulatory applicability 
as GRPSV1K.

36 SIG-B Yes TK-1501

OP-2
OP-SUMR
OP-UA3

OP-REQ2

106.472/09/04/2000
Add TK-1501 to Title V permit as submitted via Op-Notify on 07/08/2015 (Project No. 
23146).  Add negative 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart Kb applicability.

37 SIG-B Yes TK-2210

OP-2
OP-SUMR
OP-UA3

OP-REQ2

36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1
Add storage vessel.  Provide unit attribute information on Form OP-UA3.  Add negative 
40 CFR Part 60, Subpart Kb applicability.

38 SIG-B Yes TK-2620

OP-2
OP-SUMR
OP-UA3

OP-REQ2

106.472/09/04/2000
Add storage vessel.  Provide unit attribute information on Form OP-UA3.  Add negative 
40 CFR Part 60, Subpart Kb applicability.

39 SIG-B Yes TK-4020

OP-2
OP-SUMR
OP-UA3

OP-REQ2

106.472/09/04/2000
Add storage vessel.  Provide unit attribute information on Form OP-UA3.  Add negative 
40 CFR Part 60, Subpart Kb applicability.

40 SIG-B Yes T241176

OP-2
OP-SUMR
OP-UA3

OP-REQ2

106.472/09/04/2000
Add storage vessel.  Provide unit attribute information on Form OP-UA3.  Add negative 
40 CFR Part 60, Subpart Kb applicability.

41 ADMIN-A No GRPSV1K
OP-2

OP-REQ2

Update negative NSPS Kb language to current language.  Negative applicability for 
MACT YY and Chapter 115 remain the same.

42 ADMIN-A No D-8001R
OP-2

OP-REQ2
36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1 Update negative NSPS Kb language to current language.

43 ADMIN-A No DSL-TK
OP-2

OP-REQ2
106.473/09/04/2000 Update negative NSPS Kb language to current language.

44 ADMIN-A No TK-2210X
OP-2

OP-REQ2
36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1 Update negative NSPS Kb language to current language.

45 ADMIN-A No TK-3110X
OP-2

OP-REQ2
36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1 Update negative NSPS Kb language to current language.

46 ADMIN-A No TK-3710X
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

47 ADMIN-A No TK-7403X
OP-2

OP-REQ2
36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1 Update negative NSPS Kb language to current language.

48 ADMIN-A No TK-9603X
OP-2

OP-REQ2
36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1 Update negative NSPS Kb language to current language.

49 SIG-B No X-8501
OP-2

OP-REQ2
36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1 Update negative NSPS A language.

50 MS-A No F-1
OP-2

OP-SUMR

36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1
160345 (106.261)

160348 (106.261/106.262)
167920 (106.261/106.262)

169666 (106.261)
172347 (106.261)

106.261/11/01/2003[160345]
106.261/11/01/2003[160348]
106.262/11/01/2003[160348]
106.261/11/01/2003[167920]
106.262/11/01/2003[167920]
106.261/11/01/2003[169666]
106.261/11/01/2003[172347]

Add PBR Registration numbers for Unit ID

51 MS-A No F-4
OP-2

OP-SUMR

36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1
160348 (106.261/106.262)

106.261/11/01/2003[160348]
106.262/11/01/2003[160348]

Add PBR Registration numbers for Unit ID

52 MS-A No N-15
OP-2

OP-SUMR

36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1
160348 (106.261/106.262)

170435 (106.261)
106.261/11/01/2003[160348]
106.262/11/01/2003[160348]
106.261/11/01/2003[170435]

Add PBR Registration numbers for Unit ID

53 MS-A No N-15A
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

54 MS-C No F-1
OP-2

OP-SUMR
OP-REQ2

36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1 Remove 30 TAC Chapter 115, Fugitives Pet Ref B Counties Permit Shield.

55 MS-C No F-4
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

Individual Unit Summary for Revisions
Form OP-SUMR

Table 1

CAM Title I

A 21

A 22

A 23

A 24

A 25

A 26

A 27

A 28

A 29

A 30

PSDTX903M5, 
N007M1

A 31

OP-2
OP-SUMR

OP-2
OP-SUMR

TK-5273

TK-5273X

Antifoam Agent Porta-Feed

Antifoam Agent Porta-Feed

106.472/09/04/2000

106.472/09/04/2000

TK-5510 OP-2
OP-SUMR Lube Oil Reservoir 36644

T233674 OP-2
OP-SUMR 20Y114 Antifoulant Tank 106.371/09/04/2000

Potable Water Head Tank

106.472/09/04/200020Y15 Antifoulant Tank

C4 Clarified Water Tank

106.472/09/04/2000T270596 OP-2
OP-SUMR Optisperse HP7414 Tank

TK-9604 OP-2
OP-SUMR 106.472/09/04/2000

TK-9801 OP-2
OP-SUMR

106.472/09/04/2000

TK-7601 OP-2
OP-SUMR

Phosphate Injection Tank

106.472/09/04/2000

106.472/09/04/2000TK-2491 OP-2
OP-SUMR 20Y15 Antifoulant Tank

TK-7401 OP-2
OP-SUMR Potable Water Tank

106.472/09/04/2000

TK-2493 OP-2
OP-SUMR

Date:  Permit No. Regulated Entity No. 

4/1/2025 O-2551 100216977

Unit / 
Process 

AI

Unit/Process
Applicable Form Name/ Description

Unit / Process 
Revision No. ID No. 30 TAC Chapter 116/ 30 TAC 

Chapter 106

Preconstruction Authorizations

TCEQ-10344 (APDG 5767v7, Revised 05/20) OP-SUMR
This form is for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and
may be revised periodically.



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

A 32

A 33

A 34

A 35

A 36

A 37

PSDTX903M5, 
N007M1

T113596 OP-2
OP-SUMR Petroflo 4H3 Tank 106.472/09/04/2000

T233676 OP-2
OP-SUMR 20Y14 Tank 106.371/09/04/2000

T131632 OP-2
OP-SUMR 106.371/09/04/2000

T280047 OP-2
OP-SUMR CT Biodispersant Tank 106.371/09/04/2000

TK-1501

OP-2
OP-SUMR
OP-UA3

OP-REQ2

Chemical Injection Tank 106.472/09/04/2000

TK-2210

OP-2
OP-SUMR
OP-UA3

OP-REQ2

Lube Oil Reservoir 36644

Spectrus NX1100 Tank

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

A 38

A 39

A 40

A 50

A 51

A 52

OP-2
OP-SUMR
OP-UA3

OP-REQ2

TK-4020 106.472/09/04/200020Y104 Poly Inhibitor Tank

N-15 OP-2
OP-SUMR Ground Flare

36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1
160348 (106.261/106.262)

170435 (106.261)
106.261/11/01/2003[160348]
106.262/11/01/2003[160348]
106.261/11/01/2003[170435]

F-4 OP-2
OP-SUMR Benzene Extraction Equipment Leaks

36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1
160348 (106.261/106.262)

106.261/11/01/2003[160348]
106.262/11/01/2003[160348]

F-1 OP-2
OP-SUMR Fugitives

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

T241176

OP-2
OP-SUMR
OP-UA3

OP-REQ2

20Y120 Poly Inhibitor Tank, 20% 106.472/09/04/2000

TK-2620

OP-2
OP-SUMR
OP-UA3

OP-REQ2

20Y104 Poly Inhibitor Tank 106.472/09/04/2000

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

A 53 N-15A OP-2
OP-SUMR Enclosed Flare Vent Header

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
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Major NSR Summary Table 

Permit Numbers: 36644, PSDTX903M5 and N007M1 Issuance Date: 08/10/2023 

Emission Point 
No. (1) 

Source Name (2) 
Air 

Contaminant 
Name (3) 

Emission Rates  
Monitoring and 

Testing Requirements 
Recordkeeping 
Requirements 

Reporting 
Requirements 

lbs/hour TPY (4) 
Special 

Condition/Application 
Information 

Special 
Condition/Application 

Information 

Special 
Condition/Application 

Information 

N-1 

 
Recycle Ethane Cracking 
Furnace H-0100 
 

NOx (7) (10) 48.32 - 

20, 22, 28, 29, 30, 34 
20, 21, 29, 30, 34, 35, 
36, 38, 43 

29, 30, 34, 38 

NOx (7) 24.16 79.37 

SO2 (7) 2.21 4.83 

CO (7) (11) 46.50 - 

CO (7) 23.25 101.85 

PM (7) 1.51 6.61 

PM10 (7) 1.51 6.61 

PM2.5 (7) 1.51 6.61 

VOC (7) 0.57 2.51 

N-2 
Fresh Feed Cracking 
Furnace H-0200 

NOx (7) (10) 70.68 - 

20, 2122, 28, 29, 30, 34 
20, 21, 29, 30, 34, 35, 
36, 38, 43 

29, 30, 34, 38 

NOx (7) 35.34 116.08 

SO2 (7) 3.22 7.07 

CO (7) (11) 68.02 - 

CO (7) 34.01 148.97 

PM (7) 2.21 9.67 

PM10 (7) 2.21 9.67 



 

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

PM2.5 (7) 2.21 9.67 

VOC (7) 0.84 3.68 

N-3 
Fresh Feed Cracking 
Furnace H-0300 

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

N-4 
Fresh Feed Cracking 
Furnace H-0400 

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

N-5 
Fresh Feed Cracking 
Furnace H-0500 

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

N-6 
Fresh Feed Cracking 
Furnace H-0600 

NOx (7) (10) 70.68 - 

20, 22, 28, 29, 30, 34 
20, 21, 29, 30, 34, 35, 
36, 38, 43 

29, 30, 34, 38 NOx (7) 35.34 116.08 

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

N-7 
 

Fresh Feed Cracking 
Furnace H-0700 
 

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

N-8 NOx (7) (10) 70.68 - 20, 22, 28, 29, 30, 34 29, 30, 34, 38 



 

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
Furnace H-0800 

NOx (7) 35.34 116.08 

20, 21, 29, 30, 34, 35, 
36, 38, 43 

SO2 (7) 3.22 7.07 

CO (7) (11) 68.02 - 

CO (7) 34.01 148.97 

PM (7) 2.21 9.67 

PM10 (7) 2.21 9.67 

PM2.5 (7) 2.21 9.67 

VOC (7) 0.84 3.68 

N-9 

Fresh Feed Cracking 
Furnace H-0900 
(487.5 MMBtu/hr 
maximum) 

NOx (7) (10) 48.75 - 

17, 20, 21,22,  28, 29, 
30, 32, 34 

17, 20, 21, 29, 30, 32, 
34, 35, 36, 38, 43, 45 

29, 30, 32, 34, 38 

NOx (7) 12.19 21.35 

SO2 (7) 5.60 24.53 

CO (7) (11) 34.13 - 

CO (7) 17.06 74.73 

PM (7) 3.63 15.91 

PM10 (7) 3.63 15.91 

PM2.5 (7) 3.63 15.91 



 

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

VOC (7) 2.63 11.51 

NH3 1.98 8.68 

N-16 
Fresh Feed Cracking 
Furnace H-1000 
(498 MMBtu/hr maximum) 

NOx (7) (10) 49.80 - 

17, 20, 22, 28, 29, 30, 
32, 34 

17, 20, 21, 29, 30, 32, 
34, 35, 36, 38, 43 

29, 30, 32, 34, 38 

NOx (7) 12.45 21.81 

SO2 (7) 4.48 8.72 

CO (7) (11) 69.72 - 

CO (7) 17.43 76.34 

PM (7) 2.49 10.91 

PM10 (7) 2.49 10.91 

PM2.5 (7) 2.49 10.91 

VOC (7) 2.69 11.76 

NH3 1.98 8.68 

N-10 
Catalyst Regeneration 
Effluent 

VOC (7) 15.83 0.08 

 GC-7  
CO 373.33 1.89 

N-11 CO 161.43 135.57  GC-7  



 

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

Reactor Regeneration 
Effluent 
(Startup, Shutdown, and 
Maintenance) 

VOC (7) 0.13 0.11 

N-12 
 

DP Reactor Feed Heater 
 

NOx (7) 5.01 13.71 

6, 20, 22, 28, 29 6, 20, 29, 35 6, 29 

SO2 (7) 0.44 0.95 

CO (7) 4.40 12.26 

PM (7) 0.38 1.64 

PM10 (7) 0.38 1.64 

PM2.5 (7) 0.38 1.64 

VOC (7) 0.17 0.74 

DP Reactor Feed Heater 
Startup Emission Rate 

CO (7) 14.50 1.74 
6, 20, 22, 28, 29, 45, 55 6, 20, 29, 35, 45, 55 6, 29 

N-13 
DP Reactor Regeneration 
Heater 

NOx (7) 1.73 1.42 

6, 20, 22, 28, 29 6, 20, 29, 35 6,29 

SO2 (7) 0.14 0.10 

CO (7) 2.37 3.13 

PM (7) 0.13 0.17 

PM10 (7) 0.13 0.17 



 

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

PM2.5 (7) 0.13 0.17 

VOC (7) 0.06 0.08 

N-14 Auxiliary Boiler 

NOx 13.60 - 

4, 6, 20, 21, 22, 28, 29, 
30, 34 

4, 6. 20, 21, 29, 30, 34, 
35, 36, 38 

4, 6, 29, 30, 34, 38 

SO2 1.24 - 

CO 15.60 - 

PM 1.58 - 

PM10 1.58 - 

PM2.5 1.58 - 

VOC 1.58 - 

N-20A 

GTG HRSG Unit 1 
GE Frame 6B, 310.4 
MMBtu/hr Duct Burner 
(with SCR) 

NOx 17.65 - 

15, 17, 28, 29, 30, 31, 
32, 33, 34 

17, 29, 30, 31, 32, 33, 
34, 35, 36, 38 

29, 30, 32, 34, 38 

SO2 4.53 - 

CO 89.51 - 

PM 5.55 - 

PM10 5.55 - 

PM2.5 5.55 - 

VOC 4.09 - 



 

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

NH3 7.61 28.20 

N-20B 

GTG HRSG Unit 2 
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

 
Emission Point Nos. N-14, N-20A, and N-20B are subject to the following combined annual emission caps for the specified pollutants: 

 

N-14, N-20A, 
and N-20B 

Annual Emission Caps 

NOx - 102.96 

 15, 17, 28, 29, 30, 31, 
32, 33, 34 

17, 29, 30, 31,32,  33, 
34, 35, 36, 38 

29, 30, 32, 34, 38 

SO2 - 8.27 

CO - 349.85 

PM - 46.78 

PM10 - 46.78 



 

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

PM2.5 - 46.78 

VOC - 32.17 

Emission Point Nos. N-15 and N-15A are subject to the following combined annual emission caps for the specified pollutants: 

N-15 and N-15A 

Flare System Emission 
Limits Applicable During 
Routine Operations 
Exclusive of Planned 
Turnarounds 

VOC (7) 631.15 170.37 

4, 5, 6, 13, 14, 37, 44, 
56 

4, 5, 6, 13, 14, 15, 35, 
37, 44, 56 

4, 5, 6, 13 

NOx (7) 252.70 45.57 

CO (7) 1046.49 176.01 

SO2 (7) 0.56 1.32 

H2S <0.01 <0.01 

Flare System Emission 
Limits Applicable MSS 
Activities, Including 
Planned Major and Minor 
Plant Turnarounds 

VOC (7) 6788.14 169.10 

4, 5, 6, 13, 14, 37, 44, 
56 

4, 5, 6, 13, 14, 35, 37, 
44,  56 

4, 5, 6, 13  

NOx (7) 1068.91 35.83 

CO (7) 5276.94 174.20 

SO2 (7) 17.12 1.46 

H2S 0.19 0.02 

Acetylene Converter 
Swaps 

VOC (7) (15) 2778.73 - 

4, 5, 6, 13, 14, 37, 44, 
56 

4, 5, 6, 13, 14, 35, 37, 
44, 56 

4, 5, 6, 13 NOx (7) (15) 364.76 - 

CO (7) (15) 2634.43 - 



 

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
Limits Applicable to all 
Operations 

VOC - 241.07 
  

 

N-18 Decoking Drum 

CO (7) 3,360.00 204.09 

22   

PM (7) 78.73 3.98 

PM10 (7) 78.73 3.98 

PM2.5 (7) 78.73 3.98 

N-19 Thermal Oxidizer 

NOx (7) 0.24 0.89 

6, 1918, 28, 29, 30, 44 
6, 1918, 29, 30, 35, 38, 

44 
6, 29, 30, 38 

SO2 (7) 0.08 0.28 

CO (7) 0.21 0.78 

PM (7) 0.04 0.13 

PM10 (7) 0.04 0.13 

PM2.5 (7) 0.04 0.13 

VOC (7) 0.03 0.14 

N-21A 
Fire Pump Diesel Engine 
(6) 

NOx (7) 15.81 1.23 

 GC-7  SO2 (7) 1.05 0.08 

CO (7) 3.41 0.27 



 

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

PM (7) 1.12 0.09 

PM10 (7) 1.12 0.09 

PM2.5 (7) 1.12 0.09 

VOC (7) 1.26 0.10 

N-21B 
Fire Pump Diesel Engine 
(6) 

NOx (7) 15.81 1.23 

 GC-7  

SO2 (7) 1.05 0.08 

CO (7) 3.41 0.27 

PM (7) 1.12 0.09 

PM10 (7) 1.12 0.09 

PM2.5 (7) 1.12 0.09 

VOC (7) 1.26 0.10 

N-22 Carbon Bed Adsorber 

VOC (5) 0.03 <0.01 

5, 6, 2019 5, 6, 2019 5, 6 
Benzene 0.03 <0.01 

N-23 Ammonia Scrubber NH3 0.12 0.51 1617 1617  

N-24A 
Boiler B-7280 (425.4 
MMBtu/hr) 

VOC (7) 1.70 6.66 
4, 6, 17, 20, 21, 22, 28, 

29, 30, 32 
4, 6. 17, 20, 21, 29, 30, 
32, 35, 36, 38 

4, 6, 29, 30, 32, 38 
NOx (Routine) 4.25 16.64 



 

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

NOx 
(Startup)(17) 

17.02 1.23 

CO (7) 14.89 18.31 

SO2 7.91 16.67 

PM (7) 2.13 8.32 

PM10 (7) 2.13 8.32 

PM2.5 (7) 2.13 8.32 

NH3 1.87 7.33 

N-24B 
Boiler B-7290 (425.4 
MMBtu/hr) 

VOC (7) 1.70 6.66 

4, 6, 17, 20, 21, 22, 28, 
29, 30, 32 

4, 6, 17, 20, 21, 29, 30, 
32, 35, 36, 38 

4, 6. 29, 30, 32, 38 

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

N-24A and 
N-24B 

Annual Cap - Boilers B-
7280 and B-7290 

SO2 - 23.42 4, 6, 17, 20, 21, 22, 28, 
29, 30, 32 

4, 6, 17, 20, 21, 22, 29, 
30, 32, 35, 36, 38 

4, 6, 29, 30, 32, 38 

N-1 through N-
9, N-14, N-15, 
N-15A, N-16, 
N-19, N-20A, 
and N-20B 

Fresh Feed Cracking 
Furnaces, Auxiliary Boiler, 
Flare System, 
Cogeneration Facility, and 
Thermal Oxidizer (9) 

Mercury (9) 0.63 0.04 

44 42 36, 4244  

TK-2501 IFR Spent Caustic VOC (7) 0.31 (16) 4, 5, 6, 10, 50 4, 5, 6, 10, 50 4, 5, 6, 10 

TK-2501B Tank TK-2501B VOC 0.41 (16) 4, 5, 6, 10, 50 4, 5, 6, 10, 50 4, 5, 6, 10 

Tank TK-
2501/TK-2501B 
Annual Cap 

Spent Caustic Tank Cap 
VOC - 0.44 

4, 5, 6, 10, 50 4, 5, 6, 10, 50 4, 5, 6, 10 

TK-8001 IFR WW Equalization VOC (7) 0.39 0.62 6, 10 6, 10 6, 10 

TK-8101 
EFR Contaminated Storm 
water 

VOC (7) 0.51 0.47 
10 10 10 

TK-7702 Sulfuric Acid Tank 

H2SO4 0.01 0.01 

10, 51 10 10 
SO3 0.01 0.01 

TK1701 Tank TK1701 VOC 4.58 0.01 10 10 10 

TK1702 Tank TK1702 VOC 1.65 0.01 10 10 10 

TK1703 Tank TK1703 VOC 1.121.20 0.01 10 10 10 



 

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

TK1704 Tank TK1704 VOC 1.551.61 0.010.03 10 10 10 

TK-CWT 
Water Treatment 
Chemicals Storage 

VOC 0.75 0.01 10 10 10 

F-1 Fugitives (12) VOC (7) 11.96 52.41 4, 6, 9, 10, 48, 49 4, 6, 9, 48, 49, 50 4, 6 

F-2 and F-2A Cooling Tower System 

PM (7) 1.19 4.60 

4, 6, 9, 10, 24, 25, 26, 
49 

4, 6, 9, 24, 25, 26, 27, 
49, 50 

4, 6, 24, 25, 26, 27  

PM10 (7) 0.88 3.41 

PM2.5 (7) <0.01 0.01 

VOC (5) (7) 23.53 42.45 

Benzene 0.46 1.77 

F-4 
Benzene/Toluene Process 
Fugitives (12) 

VOC (7) 0.71 3.12 

4, 6, 9, 48, 49 4, 6, 9, 48, 49 50 4, 6 
H2S 0.01 0.02 

F-5 
C4 Huntsman Pipeline 
Fugitives (12) 

VOC 0.01 0.05 
4, 6, 9, 48, 49 4, 6, 9, 48, 49, 50 4, 6, 9 

FUG-AMM Ammonia Fugitives NH3 0.05 0.20 7, 17, 48, 49 7, 17, 48, 49  

AH-98002 Analyzer Vent 

VOC < 0.01 < 0.01  36  

SO2 < 0.01 < 0.01 

AH-009A Analyzer Vent VOC < 0.01 < 0.01  36  



 

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

AH-009B Analyzer Vent VOC < 0.01 < 0.01  36  

AH-007 Analyzer Vent VOC < 0.01 < 0.01  36  

 
PLANNED TURNAROUND AND MSS CAPs: 

TA CAP 
Turnaround CAP (Non-
Flare) 

VOC 16.03 4.61 

45, 46, 47. 48, 49,  51, 
52, 53, 5558 

45, 46, 47, 48, 49, 51, 
52, 53, 58, GC-7 

 

PM 0.30 1.03 

PM10 0.02 0.06 

PM2.5 <0.01 0.01 

MSS Cap MSS CAP (Non-Flare) 

VOC 19.12 4.76 

45, 46, 47, 48, 49, 51, 
52, 53, 5558 

44, 45, 46, 47, 48. 49, 
51, 52, 53,55, 58 

 

PM 0.74 1.02 

PM10 0.24 0.06 

PM2.5 0.03 0.01 

N-1 
Recycle Ethane Cracking 
Furnace H-0100 Startup 

NOx 48.32 (13) 

55 44, 45, 54, 55  
CO 93.02 (13) 

N-2 
Fresh Feed Cracking 
Furnace H-0200 Startup 

NOx 70.68 (13) 

55 45, 5455  
CO 136.04 (13) 



 

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
Furnace H-0300 Startup 

NOx 70.68 (13) 55 45, 54, 55  

CO 136.04 (13)    

N-4 
Fresh Feed Cracking 
Furnace H-0400 Startup 

NOx 70.68 (13) 

55 45, 54, 55  
CO 136.04 (13) 

N-5 
Fresh Feed Cracking 
Furnace H-0500 Startup 

NOx 70.68 (13) 

55 45, 54, 55  
CO 136.04 (13) 

N-6 
Fresh Feed Cracking 
Furnace H-0600 Startup 

NOx 70.68 (13) 

55 45, 54, 55  
CO 136.04 (13) 

N-7 
Fresh Feed Cracking H-
0700 Startup 

NOx 70.68 (13) 

55 45, 54, 55  
CO 136.04 (13) 

N-8 
Fresh Feed Cracking H-
0800 Startup 

NOx 70.68 (13) 

55 45, 54, 55  
CO 136.04 (13) 

N-9 
Fresh Feed Cracking H-
0900 Startup 

NOx 48.75 (13) 

55 45,  54, 55  
CO 34.13 (13) 

N-16 
Fresh Feed Cracking H-
1900 Startup 

NOx 49.80 (13) 

55 45, 54, 55  
CO 69.72 (13) 



 

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
Startup 

NOx 15.02 (13) 

55 45, 54, 55  
CO 14.52 (13) 

N-13 
DP Reactor Regeneration 
Heater 

NOx 3.45 (13) 

55 45, 54, 55  
CO 4.74 (13) 

N-14 Auxiliary Boiler Startup 

NOx 27.12 (13) 

55 45, 54, 55  
CO 31.19 (13) 

N-20A GTG HRSG Unit 1 Startup 

NOx 123.53 (13) 

55 45, 55, 54  
CO 716.12 (13) 

N-20B GTG HRSG Unit 2 Startup 

NOx 123.53 (13) 

55 45, 54, 55  
CO 716.12 (13) 

N-24A Boiler B-7280 Startup 

NOx 17.02 (13) 

55 45, 54, 55  
CO 29.78 (13) 

N-24B Boiler B-7290 Startup 

NOx 17.02 (13) 

55 45, 54, 55  
CO 29.78 (13) 

GTGENG-1 
Cogen Starting Engine Unit 
#20A (14) 

VOC 0.010.50 0.010.02 

59, 63 59, 63  
NOx 16.48 0.79 



 

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

CO 5.17 0.25 

SO2 0.01 0.01 

PM 0.71 0.03 

PM10 0.71 0.03 

PM2.5 0.71 0.03 

GTGENG-2 
Cogen Starting Engine Unit 
#20B (14) 

VOC 0.010.50 0.010.02 

59 63 59 63  

NOx 16.48 0.79 

CO 5.17 0.25 

SO2 0.01 0.01 

PM 0.71 0.03 

PM10 0.71 0.03 

PM2.5 0.71 0.03 

 
(1)  Emission point identification - either specific equipment designation or EPN from plot plan. 

(2) Specific point source name. For fugitive sources, use area name or fugitive source name. 
(3)  VOC - volatile organic compounds as defined in Title 30 Texas Administrative Code § 101.1 

CO - carbon monoxide 
NOx - total oxides of nitrogen 
SO2 - sulfur dioxide 
SO3 - sulfur trioxide 



 

PM - total particulate matter (PM), suspended in the atmosphere, including PM10 and PM2.5, as represented 
PM10 - total PM equal to or less than 10 microns in diameter, including PM2.5, as represented 
PM2.5 - PM equal to or less than 2.5 microns in diameter 
H2S - hydrogen sulfide 
H2SO4 - sulfuric acid 
NH3 - ammonia 

(4)  Compliance with annual emission limits (tons per year) is based on a 12-month rolling period. 
(5)  The VOC emission rate is for total VOC, including benzene. 
(6)  Emissions from the fire pump diesel engines are based on 156 hours per year operation. Non-emergency fire pump operations shall only occur between the hours 

of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. (one engine at any one time.) 
(7)  These emissions are permitted under PSD or Nonattainment review in addition to State. 
(8)  Reserved. 
(9)  Mercury shall be calculated and expressed as elemental mercury in any form or phase and shall include the mercury contained in any compound. 
(10)  Emissions from startups and spikes in the short-term rate are authorized at this rate for up to 150 total hours in any 12-month period during which emissions from 

one or more furnaces (EPNs N-1 through N-8, N-9, and N-16) exceed the routine lbs/hr emission limit. Annual emissions are included in the rates of normal 
operations. 

(11)  Emissions from startups and spikes in the short-term rate are authorized at this rate for up to 876 total hours in any 12-month period. Annual emissions are 
included in the rates of normal operations. 

(12)  Emission rate is an estimate and compliance is demonstrated by meeting the requirements of the applicable special conditions and permit application 
representations. 

(13)  Annual emission rates are included in each EPN’s respective routine emission rates. 
(14)  Each engine is authorized to operate for up to 96 total hours in any 12-month period. 
(15)  Annual emissions are included in the Flare Systems’ annual Emission Limits.  
(16)  Annual emissions are included in the Caustic Tank Cap Annual Emission Limits.  
(17)  Emissions from startups in the short-term rate are authorized at this rate for up to 144 hours per 12-month rolling period.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Major NSR Summary Table 
 

Permit Number:  GHGPSDTX3  Issuance Date:  08/24/2012 

Emission 
Unit ID 

Emission 
Point No. 

Source Name 
Air Contaminant 

Name 

Emission Rates 
Monitoring and 

Testing 
Requirements 

Recordkeeping 
Requirements 

Reporting 
Requirements 

TPY (2) TPY CO2e 
(2,3) 

Special 
Condition/Application 

Information 

Special 
Condition/Application 

Information 

Special 
Condition/Application 

Information 

H-1000 N-16 
Ethylene 
Cracking 
Furnace 

CO2 255,735 

256,914 
III.A.3-4, III.B.1.a,b,g, 
i,j, III.C.1-4, IV.A.1, 6, 
V.A-B 

III.A.3-4, III.B.1.c-g, j, 
IV.A.1.a-f, IV.A.3-9 

I.D.1-2, IV.A.6, V.C CH4 14.2 

N2O 2.8 

B-7280 and 
B-7290 

N-24A & 
N-24B 

Two Steam 
Package 
Boilers(4) 

 

 

CO2 420,095 

421,399 
III.A.3-4, III.B.2.g-h, 
III.C.1-4, IV.A.1, 6, 
V.A-B 

III.A.3-4, III.B.2.a,b, 
IV.A.1.a-e, IV.A.3-9 

I.D.1-2, IV.A.6, V.C CH4 22.0 

N2O 4.4 

DB-1 (or 
GTG1-DB) 

N-20A 

Auxiliary Gas 
Turbine Duct 
Burner 

 

CO2 117,786 

118,329 
III.A.3-4, III.B.3.f,g, 
III.C.1-4, IV.A-B, 
IV.A.1, 6, V.A-B 

III.A.3-4, III.B.3.a, 
IV.A.1.a-e, IV.A.3-9 

I.D.1-2, IV.A.6, V.C CH4 6.5 

N2O 1.3 

DB-2 (or 
GTG2-DB) 

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

D-1801 N-18 
Decoking Drum 
(10th Furnace 
Operations Only) 

CO2 571 571 III.B.1.f, IV.A.1 IV.A.1.a,f, IV.A.3-9 I.D.1-2, IV.A.6 



 

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

P-FUG F-1 
Fugitives (10th 
Furnace Project 
Only) 

CH4 N/A N/A III.B.4.a, IV.A.1, 
IV.A.1.a, e, IV.A.2, 
IV.A.3-6, 9 

IV.A.6 

HFC-FUG F-5 

HFC-Containing 
Equipment (10th 
Furnace Project 
Only) 

HFCs N/A N/A N/A 
III.B.5.b, IV.A.1.a, 
IV.A.3-6, 9 

IV.A.6 

 
(1) Compliance with the annual emission limits (tons per year) is based on a 365-day total, rolled daily. 
(2) The TPY emission limits specified in this table are not to be exceeded for this facility and include emissions only from the facility during all operations and include 

MSS activities. 
(3) Global Warming Potentials (GWP): CH4 = 21, N20 = 310 
(4) The steam package boilers have a combined annual refinery fuel gas (RFG) firing limit equivalent to one boiler firing RFG at capacity for 8,760 hrs. per year. 
 



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
Sent: Monday, March 31, 2025 9:33 AM 
To: Kyle Murray <Kyle.Murray@tceq.texas.gov> 
Cc: BTPEnvironmental <BTPEnvironmental@basf.com>; Theresa Hulvey <thulvey@clara-vista.com>; Lois 
McQuade <LMcQuade@clara-vista.com>; Jacob Benfield <jacob.benfield@basf.com> 
Subject: RE: [EXT] Working Draft Permit -- FOP O2551/Project 36831, BASF TOTALEnergies 
Petrochemicals, LLC 

Good morning Mr. Murray, 
Thanks for the feedback and we will make the correction.  I think you meant to include the WDP but 
nothing was attached to your email.  Please send the WDP. 
Thanks, 
Tammy 

Tammy Villarreal, P.E. 
Clara Vista Environmental, LLC 
(281) 728-4093

From: Kyle Murray <Kyle.Murray@tceq.texas.gov>  
Sent: Monday, March 31, 2025 9:37 AM 
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

My apologies. Here is the attached WDP. 

Sincerely, 

How are we doing?  Fill out our online customer 
satisfaction survey 
at www.tceq.texas.gov/customersurvey 

mailto:kyle.murray@tceq.texas.gov
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Flinks.govdelivery.com%2Ftrack%3Ftype%3Dclick%26enid%3DZWFzPTEmbWFpbGluZ2lkPTIwMTgxMTAyLjk3MDg5MTgxJm1lc3NhZ2VpZD1NREItUFJELUJVTC0yMDE4MTEwMi45NzA4OTE4MSZkYXRhYmFzZWlkPTEwMDEmc2VyaWFsPTE3MzIwMjU1JmVtYWlsaWQ9ZGlhbm5lLmFuZGVyc29uQHRjZXEudGV4YXMuZ292JnVzZXJpZD1kaWFubmUuYW5kZXJzb25AdGNlcS50ZXhhcy5nb3YmZmw9JmV4dHJhPU11bHRpdmFyaWF0ZUlkPSYmJg%3D%3D%26%26%26104%26%26%26http%3A%2F%2Fwww.tceq.texas.gov%2Fgoto%2Fcustomersurvey&data=05%7C02%7CKyle.Murray%40tceq.texas.gov%7C8efd50e1c2134dddaf0f08dd75d716d7%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638796289705779404%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=B0UYuXaEbdnnlL06vReGUSUJ5ttQ1ljg7afnHev%2FCHg%3D&reserved=0
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


the added Unit IDs F-1, F-4, N-15, and N-15A, please add the effective version date (not the 
date in which it was registered) that you are complying with for each PBR. It is correct to 
include the registration number, but the effective dates for each PBR will need to be 
updated. (For example, 106.261/11/01/2003[160345], the version date is used here instead 
of the PBR registration date) The effective dates of PBRs can be found here: Home - Rules & 
Meetings 

Please address the item above, review the revised WDP, and provide me with any further 
comments you may have by Tuesday, April 8th. If you have no comments, please indicate 
your approval and we will proceed towards public notice. Thank you! 

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
Sent: Monday, March 31, 2025 6:30 AM 
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

Good morning Ms. Villarreal, 

I have reviewed the documents and updated your permit according to your responses on 
03/04 and 03/10. I did find one minor issue with the updates to the OP-SUMR, however. For 

https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftexas-sos.appianportalsgov.com%2Frules-and-meetings%3Fchapter%3D106%26interface%3DVIEW_TAC%26part%3D1%26title%3D30&data=05%7C02%7CKyle.Murray%40tceq.texas.gov%7C8efd50e1c2134dddaf0f08dd75d716d7%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638796289705804841%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=mzf6UMnHj3EPG4rQ7wXMBANJoS6kCYK8IwTLFTlkNcA%3D&reserved=0
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftexas-sos.appianportalsgov.com%2Frules-and-meetings%3Fchapter%3D106%26interface%3DVIEW_TAC%26part%3D1%26title%3D30&data=05%7C02%7CKyle.Murray%40tceq.texas.gov%7C8efd50e1c2134dddaf0f08dd75d716d7%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638796289705804841%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=mzf6UMnHj3EPG4rQ7wXMBANJoS6kCYK8IwTLFTlkNcA%3D&reserved=0
mailto:kyle.murray@tceq.texas.gov
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Flinks.govdelivery.com%2Ftrack%3Ftype%3Dclick%26enid%3DZWFzPTEmbWFpbGluZ2lkPTIwMTgxMTAyLjk3MDg5MTgxJm1lc3NhZ2VpZD1NREItUFJELUJVTC0yMDE4MTEwMi45NzA4OTE4MSZkYXRhYmFzZWlkPTEwMDEmc2VyaWFsPTE3MzIwMjU1JmVtYWlsaWQ9ZGlhbm5lLmFuZGVyc29uQHRjZXEudGV4YXMuZ292JnVzZXJpZD1kaWFubmUuYW5kZXJzb25AdGNlcS50ZXhhcy5nb3YmZmw9JmV4dHJhPU11bHRpdmFyaWF0ZUlkPSYmJg%3D%3D%26%26%26104%26%26%26http%3A%2F%2Fwww.tceq.texas.gov%2Fgoto%2Fcustomersurvey&data=05%7C02%7CKyle.Murray%40tceq.texas.gov%7C8efd50e1c2134dddaf0f08dd75d716d7%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638796289705818119%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=8ZWAd3LFy2mGQOeqTkgU5eYLCv4noVLV0haQuI9KXFg%3D&reserved=0
mailto:TVillarreal@clara-vista.com
mailto:jacob.benfield@basf.com


From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 

Subject: 

Attachments: 

Tammy  Villarreal <TVillarreal@clara-vista.com> 
Wednesday, March 19, 2025 4:52 PM 
Kyle Murray 
BTPEnvironmental; Theresa  Hulvey; Lois McQuade; Tammy  Villarreal; 
jacob.benfield@basf.com 
RE: [EXT] Working Draft Permit -- FOP O2551/Project 36831, BASF 
TOTALEnergies Petrochemicals, LLC 
BTP Forms Submittal 3-19-2025.pdf; WDP - O2551 BASF TOTALEnergies 
Petrochemicals, LLC (Renewal, 36831)_Major NSR markup.docx 

Good afternoon Mr. Murray, 
On behalf of BASF TotalEnergies Petrochemicals, LLC (BTP), please find our responses below and 
corresponding attachments in answer to your emailed questions regarding the pending renewal for 
Operating Title V Permit No. O2551.  The signed OP-CRO1 will be mailed at a later date but we have 
included a PDF of it for completeness.  Please feel free to contact Jacob Benfield at BTP or myself if 
you should have any additional questions. 
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
Site Information Summary 

Form OP-1 (Page 3) 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

(Updated 03/19/2025) 

VII. Technical Contact Identifying Information (Complete if different from RO.)

Technical Contact Name Prefix: (  Mr.  Mrs.  Ms.  Dr.) 

Technical Contact Full Name:  Jacob Benfield 

Technical Contact Title:  Sr. Environmental & Sustainability Specialist 

Employer Name:  BASF Corporation 

Mailing Address:   P.O. Box 2506 

City:  Port Arthur 

State:  TX 

ZIP Code:  77643 

Territory: 

Country:  USA 

Foreign Postal Code: 

Internal Mail Code: 

Telephone No.:  915-433-8774 

Fax No.: 

Email:  jacob.benfield@basf.com 

VIII. Reference Only Requirements (For reference only.)

A. State Senator:  Senator Robert Nichols (District 3)

B. State Representative:  Rep. Manuel Christian (District 22)

C. Has the applicant paid emissions fees for the most recent agency fiscal year
(Sept. 1 - August 31)?  YES  NO  N/A 

D. Is the site subject to bilingual notice requirements pursuant to 30 TAC § 122.322?  YES  NO 

E. Indicate the alternate language(s) in which public notice is required:  Spanish



TCEQ 10002 (APD ID 251v1, revised 09/23) OP-1 
This form is for use by sources subject to air quality permit requirements 
and may be revised periodically. Page _____ of _____ 

Federal Operating Permit Program 
Site Information Summary 

Form OP-1 (Page 5) 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

(Updated 03/19/2025) 

X. Application Area Information (continued)

G. Latitude (nearest second):  29° 57’ 10”

H. Longitude (nearest second): 93° 53’ 6”

I. Are there any emission units that were not in compliance with the applicable
requirements identified in the application at the time of application submittal?  YES  NO 

J. Indicate the estimated number of emission units in the application area:  97 from NSR authorization references

K. Are there any emission units in the application area subject to the Acid Rain Program?  YES  NO 

XI. Public Notice
(Complete this section for SOP Applications and Acid Rain Permit Applications only.) 

A. Name of a public place to view application and draft permit:  Port Arthur Public Library

B. Physical Address:  4615 9th Avenue

City:  Port Arthur 

ZIP Code:  77642 

C. Contact Person (Someone who will answer questions from the public during the public notice period):

Contact Name Prefix: (  Mr.  Mrs.  Ms.  Dr.): 

Contact Person Full Name:  Jacob Benfield 

Contact Mailing Address: P.O. Box 2506 

City:  Port Arthur 

State:  TX 

ZIP Code:  77643 

Territory: 

Country:  USA 

Foreign Postal Code: 

Internal Mail Code: 

Telephone No.:  915-433-8774 



Date: 11/05/2024

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
Omit Group 1 MACT G wastewater requirements.  The source is subject to site-wide only 
MACT G requirements.  (Source is Group 2.)

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

Omit NSPS RRR requirements.  The reactor does not produce any products listed in NSPS 
RRR and is not considered a process vent.   The source is a part of Unit ID HONWWTP 
which is a wastewater treatment system that is subject to 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart YY 
and 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart G.

Add negative applicability for 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart RRR.

11 ADMIN-A No TK-9601R OP-2 36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1 Update Unit ID to coincide with facility records.  Replace Unit ID TK-9601 with TK-9601R.

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

Add storage vessel to GRPSV1K.  Unit ID TK-5273 has the same regulatory applicability as 
GRPSV1K.

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

Add storage vessel to GRPSV1K.  Unit ID TK-5510 has the same regulatory applicability as 
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

Update negative NSPS Kb language to current language.  Negative applicability for MACT 
YY and Chapter 115 remain the same.

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
ADMIN-A

SIG-B
No X-8501

OP-2
OP-REQ2

36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1 Update negative NSPS A language.

50
ADMIN-A

MS-A
No F-1

OP-2
OP-SUMR

36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1
160345 (106.261)

160348 (106.261/106.262)
167920 (106.261/106.262)

169666 (106.261)
172347 (106.261)

Add PBR Registration numbers for Unit ID

51
ADMIN-A

MS-A
No F-4

OP-2
OP-SUMR

36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1
160348 (106.261/106.262)

Add PBR Registration numbers for Unit ID

52
ADMIN-A

MS-A
No N-15

OP-2
OP-SUMR

36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1
160348 (106.261/106.262)

170435 (106.261)
Add PBR Registration numbers for Unit ID

53
ADMIN-A

MS-A
No N-15A

OP-2
OP-SUMR

36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1
160348 (106.261/106.262)

170435 (106.261)
Add PBR Registration numbers for Unit ID

54
ADMIN-A

MS-C
No F-1

OP-2
OP-SUMR
OP-REQ2

36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1 Remove 30 TAC Chapter 115, Fugitives Pet Ref B Counties Permit Shield.

55
ADMIN-A

MS-C
No F-4

OP-2
OP-SUMR
OP-REQ2

36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1 Remove 30 TAC Chapter 115, Fugitives Pet Ref B Counties Permit Shield.

56
57
58
59
60

TCEQ-10059 (APDG 5722v26, revised 03/22) OP-2  
This form is for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and
may be revised periodically. (Title V revised 03/10)



ID No.
Applicable

Form

A 9 T-5702
OP-2

OP-REQ2
NSPS NNN

A 10 R-2501X
OP-2

OP-REQ2
NSPS RRR

A 18 TK-2501B
OP-2

OP-REQ2
NSPS Kb

A 19 TK-2501
OP-2

OP-REQ2
NSPS Kb

A 36 TK-1501

OP-2
OP-SUMR
OP-UA3

OP-REQ2

NSPS Kb

A 37 TK-2210

OP-2
OP-SUMR
OP-UA3

OP-REQ2

NSPS Kb

§60.110b(b)

§63.110(d)(4) Group 1 process vent subject to 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart G and 40 CFR 
Part 60, Subpart NNN, must comply with 40 CFR, Part 63, Subpart G.

§60.110b(a) This source has a capacity of less than 19,800 gallons (75 m3).

Form OP-REQ2
Negative Applicable/Superseded Requirement Determinations

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality

Unit AI
Revision 

No.

Unit/Group/Process
Potentially Applicable

Regulatory Name

Negative 
Applicability/Superseded 

Requirement Citation

Negative Applicability/Superseded Requirement 
Reason

§60.110b(a) This source has a capacity of less than 19,800 gallons (75 m3).

60.700(a)

The source does not  produce any products listed in NSPS RRR.  In 
addition, this source is not a process vent, but rather a wastewater 
treatment vent  subject to 40 CFR 63, Part YY as it is part of Unit ID 
HONWWTP.

§60.110b(b) This source has a capacity greater than 39,890 gallons (151 m3) and stores 
a liquid with a maximum true vapor pressure less than 0.5 psia (3.5 kPa).

This source has a capacity greater than 39,890 gallons (151 m3) and stores 
a liquid with a maximum true vapor pressure less than 0.5 psia (3.5 kPa).

Regulated Entity No.

100216977

Date

3/19/2025

Permit No. 

O-2551

TCEQ-10017 (APD-ID156v2.0, Revised 07/22) Form OP-REQ2 - Negative Applicable/Superseded Requirement Determinations
This form for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and 
may be revised periodically (Title V Release 10/07)



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

A 38 TK-2620

OP-2
OP-SUMR
OP-UA3

OP-REQ2

NSPS Kb

A 39 TK-4020

OP-2
OP-SUMR
OP-UA3

OP-REQ2

NSPS Kb

A 40 T241176

OP-2
OP-SUMR
OP-UA3

OP-REQ2

NSPS Kb

D 41 GRPSV1K
OP-2

OP-REQ2
NSPS Kb

A 41 GRPSV1K
OP-2

OP-REQ2
NSPS Kb

D 42 D-8001R
OP-2

OP-REQ2
NSPS Kb

A 42 D-8001R
OP-2

OP-REQ2
NSPS Kb

D 43 DSL-TK
OP-2

OP-REQ2
NSPS Kb

A 43 DSL-TK
OP-2

OP-REQ2
NSPS Kb

D 44 TK-2210X
OP-2

OP-REQ2
NSPS Kb

A 44 TK-2210X
OP-2

OP-REQ2
NSPS Kb

This source has a capacity of less than 19,800 gallons (75 m3).

The storage vessel has a capacity of less than 19,800 gallons (75 m3).

§60.110b(a) This source has a capacity of less than 19,800 gallons (75 m3).

§60.110b(a)

The storage vessel has a capacity of less than 19,800 gallons (75 m3).

§60.110b(a) Capacity of storage vessel is less than 10,600 gallons.

§60.110b(a) The storage vessel has a capacity of less than 19,800 gallons (75 m3).

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

§60.110b(a) The storage vessels have a capacity of less than 19,800 gallons (75 m3).

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

D 45 TK-3110X
OP-2

OP-REQ2
NSPS Kb

A 45 TK-3110X
OP-2

OP-REQ2
NSPS Kb

D 46 TK-3710X
OP-2

OP-REQ2
NSPS Kb

A 46 TK-3710X
OP-2

OP-REQ2
NSPS Kb

D 47 TK-7403X
OP-2

OP-REQ2
NSPS Kb

A 47 TK-7403X
OP-2

OP-REQ2
NSPS Kb

D 48 TK-9603X
OP-2

OP-REQ2
NSPS Kb

A 48 TK-9603X
OP-2

OP-REQ2
NSPS Kb

D 49 X-8501
OP-2

OP-REQ2
NSPS A

A 49 X-8501
OP-2

OP-REQ2
NSPS A

D 54 F-1
OP-2

OP-SUMR
OP-REQ2

Chapter 115

D 55 F-4
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

30 TAC Chapter 115, Subchapter D, 
Division 2 (Fugitives Pet Ref B 

Counties)

Remove 30 TAC Chapter 115, Fugitives Pet Ref B Counties Permit Shield: 
The process unit is not located in Gregg, Nueces, or Victoria County. 

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

§60.18
Removed NSPS A permit shield:  Flare does not control a source subject to 
another subpart of 40 CFR Part 60.

§63.1100(g)(7)
§63.1100(g)(7)(i)

MACT YY flare requirements are applicable and therefore in accordance 
with 63.1100(g)(7)(i), MACT YY flare requirements supersede NSPS A 
requirements. 

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

TK-5510 
OP-2

OP-SUMR
Lube Oil Reservoir 36644

T233674
OP-2

OP-SUMR
20Y114 Antifoulant Tank 106.371/09/04/2000

Potable Water Head Tank

106.472/09/04/200020Y15 Antifoulant Tank

C4 Clarified Water Tank

106.472/09/04/2000T270596
OP-2

OP-SUMR
Optisperse HP7414 Tank

TK-9604
OP-2

OP-SUMR
106.472/09/04/2000

TK-9801
OP-2

OP-SUMR

106.472/09/04/2000

TK-7601
OP-2

OP-SUMR

Phosphate Injection Tank

106.472/09/04/2000

106.472/09/04/2000TK-2491
OP-2

OP-SUMR
20Y15 Antifoulant Tank

TK-7401 
OP-2

OP-SUMR
Potable Water Tank

106.472/09/04/2000

TK-2493
OP-2

OP-SUMR

Date:  Permit No. Regulated Entity No. 

3/19/2025 O-2551 100216977

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

T113596
OP-2

OP-SUMR
Petroflo 4H3 Tank 106.472/09/04/2000

T233676
OP-2

OP-SUMR
20Y14 Tank 106.371/09/04/2000

T131632
OP-2

OP-SUMR
106.371/09/04/2000

T280047
OP-2

OP-SUMR
CT Biodispersant Tank 106.371/09/04/2000

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

A 53

OP-2
OP-SUMR
OP-UA3

OP-REQ2

TK-4020 106.472/09/04/200020Y104 Poly Inhibitor Tank

N-15
OP-2

OP-SUMR
Ground Flare

36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1
160348 (106.261/106.262)

170435 (106.261)

N-15A
OP-2

OP-SUMR
Enclosed Flare Vent Header

36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1
160348 (106.261/106.262)

170435 (106.261)

F-4
OP-2

OP-SUMR
Benzene Extraction Equipment Leaks

36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1
160348 (106.261/106.262)

F-1
OP-2

OP-SUMR
Fugitives

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



TCEQ-10045 (APD-ID 27v5.0, Revised 07/23) OP-UA12 
This form is for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and 
may be revised periodically. (Title V Release 07/23) Page ______ of ______  

Fugitive Emission Unit Attributes 
Form OP-UA12 (Page 11) 

Federal Operating Permit Program 
Table 2a:  Title 30 Texas Administrative Code Chapter 115 (30 TAC Chapter 115) 

Subchapter D:  Fugitive Emission Control in Petroleum Refining, Natural Gas/Gasoline Processing, and Petrochemical Processes in Ozone 
Nonattainment Areas 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

Date Permit No. Regulated Entity No. 

3/19/2025 O-2551 RN100216977 

Unit ID No. SOP/GOP Index No. 
Title 30 TAC § 115.352 

Applicable 
< 250 

Components at Site Weight Percent VOC 

Reciprocating 
Compressors or Positive 

Displacement Pumps 

F-1 R5352-ALL 

F-4 R5352-ALL 



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
Form OP-UA12 (Page 21) 

Federal Operating Permit Program 
Table 2k:  Title 30 Texas Administrative Code Chapter 115 (30 TAC Chapter 115) 

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
Components Utilizing Alternative Work 

Practice in § 115.358 
Title 30 TAC § 115.358 

Fugitive Unit Description 

F-1 R5352-ALL 
No Equipment leaks in hot and cold section. 

F-4 R5352-ALL 
No 

Equipment leaks in benzene/toluene 
extraction unit. 



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

F-1 60VV-ALL 

F-4 60VV-ALL 



TCEQ-10045 (APD-ID 27v5.0, Revised 07/23) OP-UA12 
This form is for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and 
may be revised periodically. (Title V Release 07/23) Page ______ of ______  

T 
Fugitive Emission Unit Attributes 

Form OP-UA12 (Page 41) 
Federal Operating Permit Program 

Table 4j:  Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 60 (40 CFR Part 60) 
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

Title 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart VV Fugitive Unit Components (continued) 

Closed Vent System and Control Device 

Unit ID No. SOP Index No. Flare EEL EEL ID No. 
Complying 

with 60.482-10 Control Device ID. 

F-1 60VV-ALL Yes No Yes X-8501

F-4 60VV-ALL Yes No Yes X-8501



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
Form OP-UA12 (Page 42) 

Federal Operating Permit Program 
Table 4k:  Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 60 (40 CFR Part 60) 

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

Closed Vent System and Control Devices 

Unit ID. No. SOP Index No. 
CVS(or Vapor Collection 

System) EEL EEL ID No. Complying with 60.482-10 

F-1 60VV-ALL Yes No Yes 

F-4 60VV-ALL Yes No Yes 



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
Form OP-UA12 (Page 43) 

Federal Operating Permit Program 
Table 4l:  Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 60 (40 CFR Part 60) 

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

Unit ID No. SOP Index No. Title 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart VV Fugitive Unit Description 

F-1 60VV-ALL Equipment leaks in hot and cold section 

F-4 60VV-ALL Equipment leaks in benzene / toluene extraction unit. 



From: Kyle Murray <Kyle.Murray@tceq.texas.gov>  
Sent: Monday, March 10, 2025 2:10 PM 
To: Tammy Villarreal <TVillarreal@clara-vista.com> 
Cc: Jacob Benfield <jacob.benfield@basf.com>; BTPEnvironmental <BTPEnvironmental@basf.com>; 
Theresa Hulvey <thulvey@clara-vista.com> 
Subject: RE: [EXT] Working Draft Permit -- FOP O2551/Project 36831, BASF TOTALEnergies 
Petrochemicals, LLC 

Good afternoon all, 

I apologize for the oversight, but there was one item I neglected to include in my previous 
email. Please take some additional time if needed and address the following item in your 
response. You may have until Thursday, March 20th. 

• OP-PBRSUP / OP-SUMR - Table A of the OP-PBRSUP lists multiple registered PBRs. Four
of the listed units (F-1, F-4, N-15, and N-15A) are also in the permit. However, the permit
does not list the PBRs or the PBR registration numbers for these units. Please provide these
units on the OP-SUMR with all preconstruction authorizations listed. In other words, please
list the PBRs and registration numbers in addition to the other NSR permits for these units
on an updated OP-SUMR.

Response:  BTP is including a revised OP-2 and OP-SUMR forms with this 
submittal.  Updates are presented via red line strikeout. 

Thank you for your continued assistance with this project. Please reach out if you have any 
questions. 

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
Sent: Tuesday, March 4, 2025 9:00 AM 
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

Good morning all, 

In a final review before public notice, my technical specialist identified some additional 
issues regarding your application. Please address the following items by Friday, March 
14th. 

1. Major NSR Summary Table – Although the changes in the 08/10/2023 alteration
(revision) of NSR 36644/PSDTX903M5/N007M1 did not impact the MAERT
information or the Special Conditions numbers that need to be referenced in the
Major NSR Summary Table, that is not the only action that occurred since the last
Title V project. There was another NSR amendment issued 06/23/2022 in which
there were changes to the allowable emissions for a few units in the MAERT
(GTGENG-1, GTGENG-2, TK1703, and TK1704). Please update those spots on a copy
of the table and confirm no other updates are needed.

Response:  A marked-up version of the Major NSR Summary Table is included with 
this response. Updates are presented via redline/strikeout. 

2. Form OP-1
a. It was indicated in previous correspondence that Mr. Darren Lanthier was no

longer with BASF and that Mr. Jacob Benfield would serve as the technical
contact from the provided OP-1. An updated public notice contact is still
needed. Please provide an updated Page 5, Section XI. (Public Notice),
indicating the new public notice contact.

b. In the last renewal, the applicant indicated they were subject to bilingual
notice (with Spanish as the alternative language). The OP-1 in this project
says you are not. Please confirm that this is accurate and update the OP-1 if
bilingual notice is needed.

Response: Revised versions of OP-1, pages 3 and 5, are included with this 
response.  

mailto:kyle.murray@tceq.texas.gov
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Flinks.govdelivery.com%2Ftrack%3Ftype%3Dclick%26enid%3DZWFzPTEmbWFpbGluZ2lkPTIwMTgxMTAyLjk3MDg5MTgxJm1lc3NhZ2VpZD1NREItUFJELUJVTC0yMDE4MTEwMi45NzA4OTE4MSZkYXRhYmFzZWlkPTEwMDEmc2VyaWFsPTE3MzIwMjU1JmVtYWlsaWQ9ZGlhbm5lLmFuZGVyc29uQHRjZXEudGV4YXMuZ292JnVzZXJpZD1kaWFubmUuYW5kZXJzb25AdGNlcS50ZXhhcy5nb3YmZmw9JmV4dHJhPU11bHRpdmFyaWF0ZUlkPSYmJg%3D%3D%26%26%26104%26%26%26http%3A%2F%2Fwww.tceq.texas.gov%2Fgoto%2Fcustomersurvey&data=05%7C02%7CKyle.Murray%40tceq.texas.gov%7C77295bb33ba14c5aa18308dd67304e3c%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638780180129854665%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=m0XpW2wYJzQDl6OhC4xiYD66timQLqfjmw2TwgcpRPI%3D&reserved=0
mailto:TVillarreal@clara-vista.com
mailto:jacob.benfield@basf.com
mailto:BTPEnvironmental@basf.com
mailto:thulvey@clara-vista.com


3. Form OP-UA12 – Unit IDs F-1 and F-4: These two units are missing some
requirements for certain fugitive components under Chapter 115, Pet. Refinery and
Petrochemicals (Subchapter D, Division 3). They may also be missing some
requirements for certain fugitive components under NSPS VV. It appears the last
time those UA tables were submitted was in the initial issuance project about 20
years ago. Since then, we have updated the form for these rules several times due
to rule amendments/RRT updates, so now there is some missing data that we need
to determine requirements for some components. Please fill out Tables 2a-2k and
Tables 4a-4I of the UA-12 for these units.

Response: Updated UA12 tables for Unit IDs F-1 and F-4 are included with this
response. For these tables, we determined that the following index numbers R5352-
ALL and 60VV-ALL are appropriate for 30 TAC Chapter 115 and NSPS VV
respectively as in accordance with OP-UA12 instructions, BTP chooses to “imply
that all requirements other than closed vent system and control device
requirements”  in the regulation apply to the fugitive unit. Attributes for closed vent
systems and control devices are addressed in each of the Chapter 115 and NSPS
VV unit attribute forms.

4. Permit Shields
a. NSPS A for Unit ID X-8501 - This shield indicates that this flare is not being

used to control any sources subject to a Part 60 subpart. However, for
fugitive units F-1 and F-4, their existing unit attributes for NSPS VV indicate
that a flare is used, and X-8501 is the flare ID listed. If that unit attribute data
is accurate, then what the permit shield states is not true, and the shield will
need to be removed from the permit. Please verify.

Response:  We agree with your finding.  However, we also determined that 
another negative applicability determination is appropriate to show that NSPS A 
does not apply.   We confirmed that MACT YY flare requirements are applicable 
and therefore in accordance with 63.1100(g)(7)(i), MACT YY flare requirements 
supersede NSPS A requirements.  For reference the rule language of 
63.1100(g)(7)(i) is:   



Overlap of this subpart YY with other regulations for flares for the 
ethylene production source category.  
(i) Beginning no later than the compliance dates specified in § 63.1102(c),
flares that are subject to 40 CFR 60.18 or § 63.11 and used as a control
device for an emission point subject to the requirements in Table 7 to §
63.1103(e) are required to comply only with § 63.1103(e)(4). At any time
before the compliance dates specified in § 63.1102(c), flares that are subject
to 40 CFR 60.18 or § 63.11 and elect to comply with § 63.1103(e)(4) are
required to comply only with § 63.1103(e)(4).

b. 30 TAC Chapter 115 Fugitives (Subchapter B, Division 2) for Unit IDs F-1
and F-4 – These two units have existing permit shields based on location (not
being in affected county). There is no operational change that would make
the units subject to the rule. Additionally, these units have requirements for
the other division that does apply to your county (Subchapter B, Division 3)
so that also removes any suggestion that Division 2 could apply. Because of
this we are requesting to remove these shields. Please confirm if this is
acceptable.

Response: Your findings are correct. BTP is subject to 30 TAC Chapter 115, 
Subchapter D, Division 3, for Units IDs F-1 and F-4.  BTP agrees with the removal 
of the permit shield associated with 30 TAC Chapter 115, Subchapter D, Division 
2. Revised OP-2 and OP-REQ2 forms for fugitive ID’s F-1 and F-4 are included
with this submittal.  Updates are presented via red line/strikeout.

Please let me know if you have any questions about any of these items and thank you for 
your continued assistance! 

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

https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ecfr.gov%2Fcurrent%2Ftitle-40%2Fsection-63.1102%23p-63.1102(c)&data=05%7C02%7CKyle.Murray%40tceq.texas.gov%7C77295bb33ba14c5aa18308dd67304e3c%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638780180129883434%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=nIIcQOp3NafIwht5PPrI9RcW90jxEa5eNbdehhHUgbw%3D&reserved=0
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ecfr.gov%2Fcurrent%2Ftitle-40%2Fsection-60.18&data=05%7C02%7CKyle.Murray%40tceq.texas.gov%7C77295bb33ba14c5aa18308dd67304e3c%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638780180129899712%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Ncj79agTcyc%2F09BOLsTqCHEHGePPx7tmKbS6eaQR6aA%3D&reserved=0
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ecfr.gov%2Fcurrent%2Ftitle-40%2Fsection-63.11&data=05%7C02%7CKyle.Murray%40tceq.texas.gov%7C77295bb33ba14c5aa18308dd67304e3c%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638780180129912448%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=rIq1OfWr0gJt%2B3fMTgTaBFWKoUkI1kd6V5cV%2FH%2B43F4%3D&reserved=0
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ecfr.gov%2Fcurrent%2Ftitle-40%2Fsection-63.1103%23p-63.1103(e)&data=05%7C02%7CKyle.Murray%40tceq.texas.gov%7C77295bb33ba14c5aa18308dd67304e3c%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638780180129924774%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=03xijdhii2NZ37lcRfDJo0074d35A26vdufy3GEAc3Q%3D&reserved=0
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ecfr.gov%2Fcurrent%2Ftitle-40%2Fsection-63.1103%23p-63.1103(e)&data=05%7C02%7CKyle.Murray%40tceq.texas.gov%7C77295bb33ba14c5aa18308dd67304e3c%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638780180129924774%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=03xijdhii2NZ37lcRfDJo0074d35A26vdufy3GEAc3Q%3D&reserved=0
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ecfr.gov%2Fcurrent%2Ftitle-40%2Fsection-63.1103%23p-63.1103(e)(4)&data=05%7C02%7CKyle.Murray%40tceq.texas.gov%7C77295bb33ba14c5aa18308dd67304e3c%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638780180129937323%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=GIxOWpBz%2F9hd5pL99yv2Rg4hzrLKUz4D3O2wRwy3zq4%3D&reserved=0
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ecfr.gov%2Fcurrent%2Ftitle-40%2Fsection-63.1102%23p-63.1102(c)&data=05%7C02%7CKyle.Murray%40tceq.texas.gov%7C77295bb33ba14c5aa18308dd67304e3c%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638780180129949746%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=6N0IaWaNDesM9Pcr75JLIaA77H57t7wYsJtUkzSw060%3D&reserved=0
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ecfr.gov%2Fcurrent%2Ftitle-40%2Fsection-60.18&data=05%7C02%7CKyle.Murray%40tceq.texas.gov%7C77295bb33ba14c5aa18308dd67304e3c%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638780180129961944%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=9UAmiwFSRZNqsAsr8eK1n%2FtpnNA7FAx9QZEiyqQ0fXE%3D&reserved=0
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ecfr.gov%2Fcurrent%2Ftitle-40%2Fsection-63.11&data=05%7C02%7CKyle.Murray%40tceq.texas.gov%7C77295bb33ba14c5aa18308dd67304e3c%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638780180129974562%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=AXmg6wWz1AABr2JFiGIg1T560GD3HJ%2BNr5vzOpwV0mg%3D&reserved=0
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ecfr.gov%2Fcurrent%2Ftitle-40%2Fsection-63.1103%23p-63.1103(e)(4)&data=05%7C02%7CKyle.Murray%40tceq.texas.gov%7C77295bb33ba14c5aa18308dd67304e3c%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638780180129987809%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=dUD2gLSY4%2Fh0GGKIT%2FN1W0wy%2FsrmeDyHhZ9TO%2BwFwQM%3D&reserved=0
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ecfr.gov%2Fcurrent%2Ftitle-40%2Fsection-63.1103%23p-63.1103(e)(4)&data=05%7C02%7CKyle.Murray%40tceq.texas.gov%7C77295bb33ba14c5aa18308dd67304e3c%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638780180130003683%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=K%2FINe07H%2FWdB9kXolQ2XWJM5Oza7VmyyPxbmlWd8xHs%3D&reserved=0


From: Tammy  Villarreal <TVillarreal@clara-vista.com> 
Sent: Friday, November 8, 2024 10:23 AM 
To: Kyle Murray 
Cc: Jacob Benfield; BTPEnvironmental; Theresa  Hulvey; Tammy  Villarreal 
Subject: RE: [EXT] Working Draft Permit -- FOP O2551/Project 36831, BASF 

TOTALEnergies Petrochemicals, LLC 

Follow Up Flag: Follow up 
Flag Status: Completed 

Good morning Mr. Murray, 
On behalf of BASF TotalEnergies Petrochemicals, LLC (BTP), BTP accepts and approves the draft 
permit language provided on 11/6/2024.  Please let us know if you need anything else to continue 
the permit review process. 
Regards, 
Tammy 

Tammy Villarreal, P.E. 
Clara Vista Environmental, LLC 
(281) 728-4093

From: Kyle Murray <Kyle.Murray@tceq.texas.gov>  
Sent: Wednesday, November 6, 2024 11:09 AM 
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

I have implemented the revisions addressed in your response and attached the revised 
WDP.  Changes to the document are as follows: 

1. Added conditions upon which the MPGF system is approved.
2. Added footnote for GHGPSDTX3 reflected in the New Source Review Authorization

Reference Table, page 83.
3. Added PBRs 106.227/09/04/2000, 106.511/09/04/2000, and 106.532/09/04/2000 to

the NSR Reference Table.
4. Updated authorizations for Unit ID TK-2501B.

Please review the revised WDP and submit to me any additional comments by Tuesday, 
November 12th or sooner if possible. If you have no further comments on the WDP, 
please indicate your approval so we can continue with the application process. Thank you! 

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
Tuesday, November 5, 2024 5:24 PM 
Kyle Murray 
Jacob Benfield; BTPEnvironmental; Theresa  Hulvey; Tammy  Villarreal 
RE: [EXT] Working Draft Permit -- FOP O2551/Project 36831, BASF 
TOTALEnergies Petrochemicals, LLC 
WDP-O2551 BTP Renewal, 36831 - Nov 2024 Responses.pdf 

Hello Mr. Murray: 
On behalf of BASF TotalEnergies Petrochemicals, LLC (BTP), please find the response to your email 
dated October 17, 2024.  We appreciate the extension in time for this submittal.  With this 
response, we are also including signed OP-CRO1 to certify this submittal.  Please feel free to 
contact Mr. Jacob Benfield at BTP if additional information is required.   

Best regards, 
Tammy 
Tammy Villarreal, P.E. 
Clara Vista Environmental, LLC 
(281) 728-4093

mailto:kyle.murray@tceq.texas.gov
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Flinks.govdelivery.com%2Ftrack%3Ftype%3Dclick%26enid%3DZWFzPTEmbWFpbGluZ2lkPTIwMTgxMTAyLjk3MDg5MTgxJm1lc3NhZ2VpZD1NREItUFJELUJVTC0yMDE4MTEwMi45NzA4OTE4MSZkYXRhYmFzZWlkPTEwMDEmc2VyaWFsPTE3MzIwMjU1JmVtYWlsaWQ9ZGlhbm5lLmFuZGVyc29uQHRjZXEudGV4YXMuZ292JnVzZXJpZD1kaWFubmUuYW5kZXJzb25AdGNlcS50ZXhhcy5nb3YmZmw9JmV4dHJhPU11bHRpdmFyaWF0ZUlkPSYmJg%3D%3D%26%26%26104%26%26%26http%3A%2F%2Fwww.tceq.texas.gov%2Fgoto%2Fcustomersurvey&data=05%7C02%7CKyle.Murray%40tceq.texas.gov%7C8c1dd6587ba04271ec3d08dd00119f9d%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638666797915476722%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=HdtD6xYovGAQO4cNAu3QHCv6gQwi80pe58EEQjRj4e8%3D&reserved=0
mailto:TVillarreal@clara-vista.com
mailto:TVillarreal@clara-vista.com






Below are responses to questions on the application for Federal Operating Permit O2551: 

Request 5 – Granted permit shield for NSPS RRR for unit ID R-2501X 

a. We have updated the negative language for this unit to “The source does not produce
any products listed in NSPS RRR”. The following text has been removed as it raised 
confusion as to whether the rule was potentially applicable: “In addition, this source is 
not a process vent, but rather a wastewater treatment vent subject to 40 CFR 63, Part 
YY as it is part of Unit ID HONWWTP.” Please confirm this is acceptable. 

Response - The language used for the permit shield for NSPS RRR for unit ID R-2501X, “The 
source does not produce any products listed in NSPS RRR”, is acceptable to BTP. 

Request 6 - The monitoring requirements of the AMOC are sufficient to satisfy the Periodic 
Monitoring and an OP-MON is not needed. However, please provide me with the conditions 
upon which the MPGF system is approved as referenced in the approval letter. 

Response – The conditions upon which the MPGF system is approved as referenced in the 
approval letter are found in AMOC-220 and are attached to this response. 

Working Draft Permit - A working draft permit was provided via email dated 10/17/2024. 

Response – A thorough review of the working draft permit has been completed and BTP is 
requesting a few updates. 

1. New Source Review Authorization Reference Table, page 83
a. Add a ”*" to GHGPSDTX3 and a footnote that reads "*For reference, EPA

Issued Permit PSD-TX-903-GHG has been assigned TCEQ permit number
GHGPSDTX3." (BTP's existing TV Permit has this reference.)

b. BTP provided a revised OP-REQ1 form with the October 8, 2024 response to add
PBRs 106.227/09/04/2000, 106.511/09/04/2000, 106.532/09/04/2000.
Shouldn’t these PBRs be listed in this table?

2. Unit ID TK-2501B is authorized under 36644, PSDTX933M5, and N007M1.
Updated OP-2 and OP-PBRSUP forms are being submitted with this response to
correct the NSR authorization.

Please note that any updates to the previously submitted OP-2 and OP-PBRSUP forms are 
presented via redline strikeout in the versions submitted with this submittal.   



TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

Alternative Method of Control (AMOC) Plan, AMOC No.: AMOC-220
BASF TOTALEnergies Petrochemicals LLC 

NAFTA Regional Olefins Complex Multi-Point Ground Flare (MPGF) System
Port Arthur, Jefferson County

Regulated Entity Number: RN100216977

This AMOC Plan Authorization shall apply at the BASF TOTALEnergies Petrochemicals LLC (BASF), Port Arthur1.
Ethylene Plant located in Port Arthur, Jefferson County and identified by Regulated Entity Number RN100216977.
Under Title 30 Texas Administrative Code (TAC) Section 115.910 (§ 115.910) this plan authorizes the pressure-
assisted stages of a multi-point ground flare (MPGF) for use during high-pressure emission events such as planned 
maintenance, start-ups and shut-downs (MSS) as well as unplanned emergency and upset situations.

A copy of the AMOC application and the AMOC Plan provisions must be kept on-site or at a centralized location and2.
made available at the request of personnel from the TCEQ or any pollution control agency with jurisdiction. The
AMOC application is defined by the application received January 27, 2023 and supporting documentation submitted 
through March 28, 2023. 

This authorization is granted under § 115.910 for emissions sources regulated by 30 TAC Chapter 115, Subchapter B:3.
General Volatile Organic Compound Sources, Division 2: Vent Gas Control.

This AMOC shall apply in lieu of the requirements in these state regulations, as applicable. Compliance with this 
AMOC is independent of BASF’s obligation to comply with all other applicable requirements of 30 TAC Chapter 115, 
TCEQ permits and applicable state and federal law. Compliance with the requirements of this plan does not assure 
compliance with requirements of an applicable New Source Performance Standard, applicable National Emission 
Standard for Hazardous Air Pollutants, or an Alternative Means of Emission Limitation (AMEL) and does not constitute 
approval of alternative standards for these regulations. 

In accordance with 30 TAC § 115.913(c), all representations submitted for this plan, as well as the provisions listed4.
here, become conditions upon which this AMOC Plan is issued. It is unlawful to vary from the emission limits, control
requirements, monitoring, testing, reporting or recordkeeping requirements of this Plan.

The high-pressure MPGF system identified as X-8501 (EPN N-15), authorized under Permit Nos. 36644,5.
PSDTX903M5,  PSDGHGTX903,  N007M1 and O2551 are subject to this AMOC plan.  The MPGF system is
manufactured by Callidus and is 12 stages with 28 pilots. When the pressure-assisted burners exceed the tip velocity 
portions of §60.18, §63.11, and 30 TAC 115, the MPGF stages will be operated, and compliance demonstrated, when 
the requirements in paragraph 6 are met.

6. The HP stages and burners of the MPGF shall be designed with no assist air and may use steam-assist during the
pressure-assisted operations in accordance with the following requirements when regulated materials are routed to
the flare(s) for at least 15-mintues, to achieve 98 % destruction and removal efficiency (DRE) for organic compounds
with four or more carbon atoms, and 99% DRE for organic compounds with three or less carbon atoms.

Operating Requirements: The net heating value of the flare vent gas combustion zone (NHVcz) must be greaterA.
than or equal to 800 British thermal units per standard cubic foot (Btu/scf) and when using steam-assist, the net
heating value dilution parameter (NHVdil) must be maintained at or above 22 Btu/ft2, demonstrated by continuously
complying with a 15-minute block average according to the following:

Determination of Net Heating Values NHVcz, NHVvg, and NHVdil.(1)
The net heating value of the vent gas (NHVvg) shall be determined following 40 CFR § 63.670(l)(5)(ii)(A)-a)
(B).

The net heating value of the combustion zone gas (NHVcz) shall be determined per 40 CFR §b)
63.670(m)(1).

1
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The net heating value dilution parameter (NHVdil) as specified in 40 CFR § 63.670(n)(1).c)
Different monitoring methods may be used to determine vent gas composition for different gaseous
streams provided the composition or net heating value of all gas streams that contribute to the flare vent
gas are determined following the options and applicable requirements in 40 CFR §§ 63.670(j) and
63.670(l).

(2) Maximum Flare Tip Velocity (Vtip). Calculation of Vtip is not applicable to the HP MPGF burners consistent with
40 CFR § 63.1103(e)(4)(vii)(A).

Flare Vent Gas Flow Rate Requirements. Install, operate, calibrate, and maintain a monitoring system(3)
capable of continuously measuring calculating, and recording the cumulative volumetric flow rates in the flare
header or headers that feed the flare, including any supplemental natural gas and/or assist steam used with
the flare. The flow rate monitoring systems must comply with 40 CFR § 63.670(i), as applicable.  The flow rate
monitoring system must be able to correct for the temperature and pressure of the system and output
parameters in standard conditions following § 63.670(i)(1).

Monitoring Requirements. The operator must follow the calibration and maintenance procedures according to(4)
Table 2 below and 40 CFR § 63.671(a), (c), (d), and (e) for all monitors.

Pilot Flame Requirements: The HP MPGF shall be operated with a flame present at all times when regulatedB.
material is routed to a given stage of HP burners in compliance with and monitored following 40 CFR §§ 63.670(b)
and (g), or 63.1103(e)(4)(vii)(D).  The distance between any two burners in series on a stage is no more than 6
feet when measured from the center of one burner to the next burner. Each stage which uses cross-lighting must
comply with 40 CFR §§ 63.1103(e)(4)(vii)(E) and 40 CFR § 63.999.

Visible Emission Requirements: When any HP flare stage is receiving regulated materials, the MPGF shall beC.
operated with no visible emissions except for periods not to exceed a total of 5 minutes during any 2 consecutive
hours and meet 40 CFR § 63.670(c) and (h).

Pressure Monitor and Stage Valve Position Indicator Requirements: Install and operate pressure monitor(s) onD.
the main flare header, as well as a valve position indicator monitoring system for each staging valve following
63.1103(e)(4)(vii)(F).

Continuous Monitoring Requirements: Follow the specifications, calibration, and maintenance proceduresE.
according to the following:

General.(1)

At all times, all monitoring equipment must operate and be maintained in a manner consistent with 40(a)
CFR §§ 60.11(d), 63.6(e)(1)(i), 63.671(a), and Table 13 of MACT CC with the TCEQ as the Administrator.

Any monitor downtime must comply with 40 CFR §§ 63.671(a)(4) and 63.671(c). The monitors and(b)
analyzers shall operate as required by this section at least 95% of the time when the flare is operational,
averaged over a rolling 12-month period.

Unless otherwise specified, each measurement taken by the monitoring systems shall comply with 40(c)
CFR §63.671(d).

Composition or Net Heating Values. Install, operate, calibrate, and maintain a monitoring system which meets(2)
one or more of the following:

A calorimeter capable of continuously measuring, calculating, and recording the net heating value,(a)
NHVvg, present in the flare vent gas according to 40 CFR § 63.670(j)(3).  The monitor shall meet the
accuracy and calibration requirements of Table 13 of MACT CC.

A gas chromatograph or gas chromatograph / mass spectrograph system for the NHVvg as specified in(b)
40 CFR § 63.670(j)(1) or (2).  Component properties determinations must follow 40 CFR § 63.670(l)(1)
and Table 12 of MACT CC. The system used to determine compositional analysis shall follow 40 CFR §
63.671(e).
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An optional hydrogen monitoring system may be used if capable of meeting 40 CFR § 63.670(j)(4). The(c)
hydrogen analyzer must meet the accuracy and calibration requirements of Table 13 of MACT CC.

Flow Rates.(3)

Different flow monitoring methods may be used to measure different gaseous streams and assist media(a)
streams provided that 40 CFR §63.670(i) is followed.  Any flow rate monitoring system must follow 40
CFR §63.670(i)(1).

The measurement location must be selected following Table 13 of MACT CC.(b)

All flow monitors shall meet the accuracy and calibration requirements of Table 13 of MACT CC.(c)

Pilots.(4)

The pilot flame continuous monitoring must meet 40 CFR § 63.670(b).(a)

Loss of pilot flame is determined by and must meet 40 CFR §§63.670(b) or as specified in(b)
63.1103(e)(4)(vii)(D) and the recordkeeping must meet 40 CFR § 63.655(i)(9)(i).

A video camera that meets 40 CFR §63.670(h)(2) may be used to demonstrate compliance.(c)

Pressure.  Any pressure monitor must meet the accuracy and calibration requirements of Table 13 of MACT(5)
CC.

Temperature. Any temperature monitor used for correction purposes must meet the accuracy and calibration(6)
requirements of Table 13 of MACT CC.

Recordkeeping Requirements:  Keep records according to 40 CFR § 63.655(i)(9) and sufficient records toF.
demonstrate compliance with this Special Condition.

G. Emission Determinations. Calculations of hourly and annual emissions to determine compliance with permit
limitations and emission inventories shall be determined and recorded using the monitoring data collected
pursuant to this Plan applying the parameters measured during each 15-minute block period and the emission
factors and emissions methodology represented in the most recent permit application. To calculate CH4, CO2, and
N2O greenhouse gas emissions, use the methodology in 40 CFR § 98.233(n)(4) – (7).



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

106.262/11/01/2003, 
106.478/09/04/2000

36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1
Add negative 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart Kb applicability.

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



TCEQ-20875 (APD-ID 102v1, revised 05/22) OP-PBRSUP 
This form for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and  
may be revised periodically (Title V IMS Release 05/20) Page____ of ______ 

Permit By Rule Supplemental Table (Page 1) 
Table A: Registered Permits by Rule (30 TAC Chapter 106) for the Application Area 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

Date Permit Number Regulated Entity Number 

11/05/2024 O-2551 RN100216977 

Unit ID No. Registration No. PBR No. Registration Date 

F-1 160345 106.261 03/16/2020 

F-1 160348 106.261 / 106.262 03/25/2020 

F-4 160348 106.261 / 106.262 03/25/2020 

AH-009A 160348 106.261 / 106.262 03/25/2020 

N-15 and N-15A 160348 106.261 / 106.262 03/25/2020 

AH-006 164240 106.261 / 106.262 03/09/2021 

AH-008 164240 106.261 / 106.262 03/09/2021 

AH-010 164240 106.261 / 106.262 03/09/2021 

F-1 167920 106.261/106.262 3/11/2022 

F-1 169666 106.261 8/3/2022, 03/22/2023, 09/07/2023 



TCEQ-20875 (APD-ID 102v1, revised 05/22) OP-PBRSUP 
This form for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and  
may be revised periodically (Title V IMS Release 05/20) Page ____ of _____ 

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

MSS CAP 169666 106.263 8/3/2022, 03/22/2023, 09/07/2023 

N-15 / N-15A 170435 106.261 10/07/2022 

F-1 172347 106.261 06/21/2023 



TCEQ-20875 (APD-ID 102v1, revised 05/22) OP-PBRSUP 
This form for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and  
may be revised periodically (Title V IMS Release 05/20) Page ____ of _____ 

Permit By Rule Supplemental Table (Page 2) 
Table B: Claimed (not registered) Permits by Rule (30 TAC Chapter 106) for the Application Area 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

Date Permit Number Regulated Entity Number 

11/05/2024 O-2551 RN100216977 

Unit ID No. PBR No. Version No./Date 

DSL-TK 106.473 9/4/2000 

F-2A 106.371 9/4/2000 

MOD18 106.454 9/4/2000 

TK-1701 106.478 9/4/2000 

TK-1702 106.472 9/4/2000 

TK-1703 106.472 9/4/2000 

TK-1704 106.478 9/4/2000 

TK-2501B 106.262 
106.478 

11/1/2003 
9/4/2000 

T270596 106.472 9/4/2000 

TK-7401 106.472 9/4/2000 

TK-7601 106.472 9/4/2000 



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

TK-2493 106.472 9/4/2000 

TK-2491 106.472 9/4/2000 

TK-9604 106.472 9/4/2000 

TK-9801 106.472 9/4/2000 

TK-5273 106.472 9/4/2000 

TK-5273X 106.472 9/4/2000 

T233674 106.371 9/4/2000 

T233676 106.371 9/4/2000 

T113596 106.472 9/4/2000 

T131632 106.371 9/4/2000 

T280047 106.371 9/4/2000 



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

TK-1501 106.472 9/4/2000 

TK-2620 106.472 9/4/2000 

TK-4020 106.472 9/4/2000 

T241176 106.472 9/4/2000 

SDBZWD 106.227 9/4/2000 

TMPENG 106.511 9/4/2000 

SWPD 106.532 9/4/2000 

SWWP 106.532 9/4/2000 



 

TCEQ-20875 (APD-ID 102v1, revised 05/22) OP-PBRSUP 
This form for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and  
may be revised periodically (Title V IMS Release 05/20) Page ____ of _____ 
 

 
Permit By Rule Supplemental Table (Page 3) 

Table C: Claimed (not registered) Permits by Rule (30 TAC Chapter 106) for Insignificant Sources for the Application Area 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

 

Date Permit Number Regulated Entity Number 

11/05/2024 O-2551 RN100216977 

 

PBR No. Version No./Date 

106.102 9/4/2000 

106.316 9/4/2000 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 
  



 

TCEQ-20875 (APD-ID 102v1, revised 05/22) OP-PBRSUP 
This form for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and  
may be revised periodically (Title V IMS Release 05/20) Page ____ of _____ 
 

Permit By Rule Supplemental Table (Page 4) 
Table D: Monitoring Requirements for registered and claimed PBRs for the Application Area 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

 

Date Permit Number Regulated Entity Number 

11/05/2024 O-2551 RN100216977 

 

Unit ID No. PBR No. Version No./Date Or 
Registration No. 

Monitoring Requirement 

F-1 106.261 160345 Components are monitored per the site’s leak detection and repair program. 

F-1 106.261 / 106.262 160348 Components are monitored per the site’s leak detection and repair program. 

F-4 106.261 / 106.262 160348 Components are monitored per the site’s leak detection and repair program. 

AH-009A 106.261 / 106.262 160348 Monthly emissions calculations using measured process conditions. 

N-15 and N-15A 106.261 / 106.262 160348 Monthly emissions calculations using measured process conditions. 

AH-006 106.261 / 106.262 164240 Monthly emissions calculations using measured process conditions. 

AH-008 106.261 / 106.262 164240 Monthly emissions calculations using measured process conditions. 

AH-010 106.261 / 106.262 164240 Monthly emissions calculations using measured process conditions. 

F-1 106.261 / 106.262 167920 Components are monitored per the site’s leak detection and repair program. 

F-1 106.261 169666 Components are monitored per the site’s leak detection and repair program. 

MSS CAP 106.263 169666 Maintain a record of the maintenance activity and associated emissions. 

 
  



 

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

N-15 / N-15A 106.261 170435 Monthly emission calculations using measured process conditions. 

F-1 106.261 172347 Components are monitored per the site’s leak detection and repair program. 

DSL-TK 106.473 9/4/2000 Maintain a record of the material stored, loading rate, tank capacity, monthly emissions. 

F-2A 106.371 9/4/2000 Maintain a record of cooling tower circulation rate. 

MOD18 106.454 9/4/2000 Maintain a record of solvent used and the total solvent makeup per year. 

TK-1701 106.478 9/4/2000 Maintain a record of the material stored, maximum true vapor pressures and associated 
emission calculations. 

TK-1702 106.472 9/4/2000 Maintain a record of the material stored. 

TK-1703 106.472 9/4/2000 Maintain a record of the material stored.  

TK-1704 106.478 9/4/2000 Maintain a record of the material stored, maximum true vapor pressures and associated 
emission calculations. 

TK-2501B 106.262 11/1/2003 Monthly emission calculations using measured process conditions. 

TK-2501B 106.478 9/4/2000 Maintain a record of the material stored, maximum true vapor pressures and associated 
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

T270596 106.472 9/4/2000 Maintain a record of the material stored. 

TK-7401 106.472 9/4/2000 Maintain a record of the material stored. 

TK-7601 106.472 9/4/2000 Maintain a record of the material stored. 

TK-2493 106.472 9/4/2000 Maintain a record of the material stored. 

TK-2491 106.472 9/4/2000 Maintain a record of the material stored. 

TK-9604 106.472 9/4/2000 Maintain a record of the material stored. 

TK-9801 106.472 9/4/2000 Maintain a record of the material stored. 

TK-5273 106.472 9/4/2000 Maintain a record of the material stored. 

TK-5273X 106.472 9/4/2000 Maintain a record of the material stored. 

T233674 106.371 9/4/2000 Maintain a record of the use for the material stored. 

T233676 106.371 9/4/2000 Maintain a record of the use for the material stored. 

T113596 106.472 9/4/2000 Maintain a record of the material stored. 

T131632 106.371 9/4/2000 Maintain a record of the use for the material stored. 



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

T280047 106.371 9/4/2000 Maintain a record of the use for the material stored. 

TK-1501 106.472 9/4/2000 Maintain a record of the material stored. 

TK-2620 106.472 9/4/2000 Maintain a record of the material stored. 

TK-4020 106.472 9/4/2000 Maintain a record of the material stored. 

T241176 106.472 9/4/2000 Maintain a record of the material stored. 

SDBZWD 106.227 9/4/2000 Maintain a record of material used. 

TMPENG 106.511 9/4/2000 Maintain records of hours of operation. 

SWPD 106.532 9/4/2000 Maintain a record of the function of the wastewater treatment system. 

SWWP 106.532 9/4/2000 Maintain a record of the function of the wastewater treatment system. 



From: Tammy  Villarreal <TVillarreal@clara-vista.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, October 30, 2024 12:10 PM 
To: Kyle Murray 
Cc: Jacob Benfield; BTPEnvironmental; Theresa  Hulvey; Tammy  Villarreal 
Subject: RE: [EXT] Working Draft Permit -- FOP O2551/Project 36831, BASF 

TOTALEnergies Petrochemicals, LLC 
Attachments: STEERS Title V Application Submittal (Update) 

Hi Mr. Murray: 
Thanks for the extension! 

As for the October 8th submittal via STEERS, this was not a new renewal application, but was 
intended to be the official response to your September 9th request for additional information.  We 
had tied the October 8th  STEERS submittal to the existing TCEQ Project Number (#36831) as shown 
in the attached STEERS confirmation email but it appears STEERS assumed it was new 
application.  Please use the October 8th STEERS submittal as the RO certified response to your 
September 9th request for information. 
Thanks 
Tammy 
Tammy Villarreal, P.E. 
Clara Vista Environmental, LLC 
(281) 728-4093

From: Kyle Murray <Kyle.Murray@tceq.texas.gov>  
Sent: Wednesday, October 30, 2024 11:52 AM 
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

This will not be an issue. You may have until November 8th to respond. 

On a separate note, TCEQ received an additional renewal submission for FOP O2551 on 
October 8th . All documents in this new submission appear to be identical to the current 
renewal submission (pertaining to this email correspondence). Please let me know if there 
was meant to be updates associated with the submission or if it was submitted by mistake. 
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


From: steers@tceq.texas.gov 
Sent: Tuesday, October 8, 2024 10:42 AM 
To: Theresa  Hulvey; john.lycan@basf.com; Tammy  Villarreal 
Subject: STEERS Title V Application Submittal (Update) 

This confirms the submittal of your Title V Existing Application to the TCEQ. 

 Your application was successfully submitted and received by the TCEQ at 10/08/2024 10:42 AM. 

 The submitted application will now be reviewed by the program area. You will be notified by the 
program area reviewing your application if more information is needed and of final action (approval or 
denial) of the application. 

 The Reference number for this submittal is 687236. 

 The Area ID for this submittal is 2551. 
 The Project ID for this submittal is 36831. 
 The STEERS confirmation number for this submittal is 569580. 
 The hash code for this submittal is 
CC4610829D84DA2C1D08B8BEBB448395B50EA2057E7993E57DDA0D41D9D3B4A6. 

You may access the copy of record (submitted application) from the submit log which is available by 
selecting Submissions from the Home page of STEERS https://www3.tceq.texas.gov/steers/. 

If you have any questions, please contact the Air Permits division at 512-239-1250 or by e-
mail at airperm@tceq.texas.gov. 

Best Regards, 

Kyle J. Murray 
Environmental Permit Specialist (III) 
TCEQ – APD – OP Section (Title V) 
(512) 239-1279

How are we doing?  Fill out our online customer satisfaction survey 
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
Sent: Wednesday, October 30, 2024 11:31 AM 
To: Kyle Murray <Kyle.Murray@tceq.texas.gov> 
Cc: Jacob Benfield <jacob.benfield@basf.com>; BTPEnvironmental <BTPEnvironmental@basf.com>; 
Tammy Villarreal <TVillarreal@clara-vista.com>; Theresa Hulvey <thulvey@clara-vista.com> 
Subject: RE: [EXT] Working Draft Permit -- FOP O2551/Project 36831, BASF TOTALEnergies 
Petrochemicals, LLC

Hello Mr. Murray, 

On behalf of BASF TotalEnergies Petrochemicals, LLC (BTP), I’m requesting an extension to 
respond to your request below.  Both the plant manager (RO) and the technical contact are out of 
the office all this week and we are unable to finalize the response.  If possible, we would like to 
request until November 8th to respond.  This will give BTP time to get back into the office and review 
and submit the response.  Thank you for your time. 

Best regards, 
Tammy 
Tammy Villarreal, P.E. 
Clara Vista Environmental, LLC 
(281) 728-4093

mailto:kyle.murray@tceq.texas.gov
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Flinks.govdelivery.com%2Ftrack%3Ftype%3Dclick%26enid%3DZWFzPTEmbWFpbGluZ2lkPTIwMTgxMTAyLjk3MDg5MTgxJm1lc3NhZ2VpZD1NREItUFJELUJVTC0yMDE4MTEwMi45NzA4OTE4MSZkYXRhYmFzZWlkPTEwMDEmc2VyaWFsPTE3MzIwMjU1JmVtYWlsaWQ9ZGlhbm5lLmFuZGVyc29uQHRjZXEudGV4YXMuZ292JnVzZXJpZD1kaWFubmUuYW5kZXJzb25AdGNlcS50ZXhhcy5nb3YmZmw9JmV4dHJhPU11bHRpdmFyaWF0ZUlkPSYmJg%3D%3D%26%26%26104%26%26%26http%3A%2F%2Fwww.tceq.texas.gov%2Fgoto%2Fcustomersurvey&data=05%7C02%7CKyle.Murray%40tceq.texas.gov%7Cfc86196db5c441e1934308dcf905b503%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638659050165396213%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=sc00V4fV0lsgoapf4FmhaIi%2F5woaiLI2AOrw9VqUAXU%3D&reserved=0
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
Sent: Wednesday, October 23, 2024 9:10 AM 
To: Theresa  Hulvey 
Cc: TVillarreal@clara-vista.com 
Subject: RE: [EXT] Working Draft Permit -- FOP O2551/Project 36831, BASF 

TOTALEnergies Petrochemicals, LLC 

Good morning Theresa, 

Thank you for reaching out. The guidance in the September 9th email is correct to follow. 
Since you have submitted the previous updates through STEERS then no further 
certification would be required. Unfortunately, these submitted documents can 
occasionally take some time to reach the permit reviewer as they have to be processed by 
management. Please disregard my request for an original OP-CRO1 in my previous email. I 
do appreciate the updated files sent via email as it allows me (and any future permit 
reviewer) to immediately continue work on the application. Let me know if you have any 
further questions. 

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
http://links.govdelivery.com/track?type=click&enid=ZWFzPTEmbWFpbGluZ2lkPTIwMTgxMTAyLjk3MDg5MTgxJm1lc3NhZ2VpZD1NREItUFJELUJVTC0yMDE4MTEwMi45NzA4OTE4MSZkYXRhYmFzZWlkPTEwMDEmc2VyaWFsPTE3MzIwMjU1JmVtYWlsaWQ9ZGlhbm5lLmFuZGVyc29uQHRjZXEudGV4YXMuZ292JnVzZXJpZD1kaWFubmUuYW5kZXJzb25AdGNlcS50ZXhhcy5nb3YmZmw9JmV4dHJhPU11bHRpdmFyaWF0ZUlkPSYmJg==&&&104&&&http://www.tceq.texas.gov/goto/customersurvey
mailto:thulvey@clara-vista.com


We are trying to understand why your October 17th email requested an original signature OP-CRO1 form 
that lists the October 8th response as well as the date of the response to the latest revised WDP.   

BTP submitted the response to the first revised WDP on October 8th via STEERS (Please see the 
attached email, which provides details of the submittal).  It was our understanding that submittal of the 
response in STEERS did not require an OP-CRO1 form as the signature in STEERS takes the place of 
an original OP-CRO1 signature.  We sent you an email that morning with the files that were uploaded into 
STEERS as a courtesy.  We did this to let you know the response was submitted in a timely fashion and 
to inform you of the details of the response as we don't know the process of how STEERS uploads reach 
the correct permit reviewer.  The email was not meant to be the 'official' response.  We thought we were 
following the guidance noted in your September 9th email: "Application updates may now be submitted 
through Title V STEERS. Any application updates that are submitted by the RO/DAR through STEERS 
are certified and do not require the submittal of an original signature OP-CRO1. Application updates that 
are provided through email or physical mail require certification using an original signature OP-CRO1." 

We would like the option of submitting WDP responses via STEERS, but want to make sure all the 
required documentation is included with each upload. 

Are OP-CRO1 forms needed when submitting WDP responses in STEERS?  Is there a different reason 
as to why an original signed OP-CRO1 form might be needed for this application? 

Thank you in advance for your help. 

Regards,  

Theresa Hulvey 

Clara Vista Environmental, LLC 

thulvey@clara-vista.com 

From: Theresa Hulvey <thulvey@clara-vista.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, October 23, 2024 8:53 AM 
To: Kyle Murray <Kyle.Murray@tceq.texas.gov> 
Cc: Tammy Villarreal <TVillarreal@clara-vista.com>; Theresa Hulvey <thulvey@clara-vista.com> 
Subject: Fw: [EXT] Working Draft Permit -- FOP O2551/Project 36831, BASF TOTALEnergies 
Petrochemicals, LLC 

Good morning Kyle, 

mailto:thulvey@clara-vista.com
mailto:Kyle.Murray@tceq.texas.gov


I have implemented the revisions addressed in your response and attached a revised 
WDP.  Changes to the document (1-4) and additional requests (5-6) are as follows: 

1. Added MACT DDDDD requirements for unit IDs N-12 and N-13 based on your OP-
UA5 submission.

2. Updated NSPS Kb negative applicability language for GRPSV1K and additional
sources. Added Unit ID T280047 to GRPSV1K.

3. Updated NSPS NNN negative applicability citation and reasoning for unit ID T-5702.

4. Removed the individual unit IDs T-8201 and HONWWTP from the permit document
as all requirements are contained in the Site-Wide Special Terms and Conditions.

5. Granted permit shield for NSPS RRR for unit ID R-2501X

a. We have updated the negative language for this unit to “The source does not
produce any products listed in NSPS RRR”. The following text has been
removed as it raised confusion as to whether the rule was potentially
applicable: “In addition, this source is not a process vent, but rather a
wastewater treatment vent subject to 40 CFR 63, Part YY as it is part of Unit
ID HONWWTP.” Please confirm this is acceptable.

6. The monitoring requirements of the AMOC are sufficient to satisfy the Periodic
Monitoring and an OP-MON is not needed. However, please provide me with the
conditions upon which the MPGF system is approved as referenced in the approval
letter.

Please review the revised WDP and submit to me any additional comments by Thursday, 
October 31st or sooner if possible. Thank you! 

Additionally, please provide certification for the application updates submitted on 
10/08/2024 with your response. You can list that on the specific date section of form OP-
CRO1. Please also include certification for the date of your response to this email on the 
OP-CRO1 . You can submit the form in STEERS, or you may email me a scanned copy 
followed by the original in the mail. 

Sincerely, 

Kyle J. Murray 
Permit Reviewer 
OA/Air Permits Division/OP Section 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

From: Kyle Murray <Kyle.Murray@tceq.texas.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, October 17, 2024 1:51 PM 
To: Jacob Benfield <jacob.benfield@basf.com> 
Cc: Tammy Villarreal <TVillarreal@clara-vista.com> 
Subject: RE: [EXT] Working Draft Permit -- FOP O2551/Project 36831, BASF TOTALEnergies 
Petrochemicals, LLC

Good afternoon Mr. Benfield, 

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
Sent: Tuesday, October 8, 2024 1:24 PM 
To: Kyle Murray 
Cc: Jacob Benfield; Lois McQuade; Theresa  Hulvey; Tammy  Villarreal 
Subject: RE: [EXT] Working Draft Permit -- FOP O2551/Project 36831, BASF 

TOTALEnergies Petrochemicals, LLC 
Attachments: WDP-O2551 BTP Renewal, 36831 - Sept 2024 Responses TCEQ EPA 

email.pdf 

Dear Mr. Murray, 

On behalf of BASF TOTALEnergies Petrochemicals, LLC (BTP), please find the attached 
response to your emailed questions below.  The official response was submitted via 
STEERS this morning.  Please feel free to contact Mr. Jacob Benfield at BTP if you should 
have any additional questions. 

Best regards, 
Tammy 

Tammy Villarreal, P.E. 
Clara Vista Environmental, LLC 
(281) 728-4093

mailto:Kyle.Murray@tceq.texas.gov


Texas Commission on Environmental Quality
Title V Existing

2551

Site Information (Regulated Entity)

What is the name of the permit area to be
authorized?   ETHYLENE / PROPYLENE CRACKER AND

COGENERATION
Does the site have a physical address?   No
Because there is no physical address, describe
how to locate this site:   Intx of Hwy 73 and Hwy 366 Gate 99

City   Port Arthur
State   TX
ZIP   77642
County   JEFFERSON
Latitude (N) (##.######)   29.952777
Longitude (W) (-###.######)   93.885
Primary SIC Code   2869
Secondary SIC Code  
Primary NAICS Code   325110
Secondary NAICS Code  
Regulated Entity Site Information  
What is the Regulated Entity's Number (RN)?   RN100216977
What is the name of the Regulated Entity (RE)?   BASF TOTAL FINA NAFTA REGION OLEFINS

COMPLEX
Does the RE site have a physical address?   No
Because there is no physical address, describe
how to locate this site:   ON SH 366 GATE 99 AT INTX N HIGHWAY

366 & HIGHWAY 73
City   PORT ARTHUR
State   TX
ZIP   77642
County   JEFFERSON
Latitude (N) (##.######)   29.903888
Longitude (W) (-###.######)   -94.055
Facility NAICS Code  
What is the primary business of this entity?   PETROCHEMICAL MANUFACTURING PLANT

Customer (Applicant) Information

How is this applicant associated with this site?   Owner Operator
What is the applicant's Customer Number
(CN)?   CN604166967

Type of Customer   Corporation
Full legal name of the applicant:  
Legal Name   Basf Totalenergies Petrochemicals Llc
Texas SOS Filing Number   801691640
Federal Tax ID   223620488
State Franchise Tax ID   12236204884
State Sales Tax ID  



Local Tax ID  
DUNS Number   78499192
Number of Employees   251-500
Independently Owned and Operated?   Yes

Responsible Official Contact

Person TCEQ should contact for questions
about this application:  

Organization Name   BASF CORPORATION
Prefix   MR
First   JOHN
Middle  
Last   LYCAN
Suffix  
Credentials  
Title   VICE PRESIDENT PORT ARTHUR SITE

MANAGER
Enter new address or copy one from list:  
Mailing Address  
Address Type   Domestic
Mailing Address (include Suite or Bldg. here, if
applicable)   PO BOX 2506

Routing (such as Mail Code, Dept., or Attn:)  
City   PORT ARTHUR
State   TX
ZIP   77643
Phone (###-###-####)   4099605224
Extension  
Alternate Phone (###-###-####)  
Fax (###-###-####)   4099601750
E-mail   john.lycan@basf.com

Technical Contact

Person TCEQ should contact for questions
about this application:  

Select existing TC contact or enter a new
contact.   New Contact

Organization Name   BASF Corporation
Prefix   MR
First   Jacob
Middle  
Last   Benfield
Suffix  
Credentials  
Title   Senior Environmental & Sustainability

Specialist
Enter new address or copy one from list:   Responsible Official Contact
Mailing Address  
Address Type   Domestic



Mailing Address (include Suite or Bldg. here, if
applicable)   PO BOX 2506

Routing (such as Mail Code, Dept., or Attn:)  
City   PORT ARTHUR
State   TX
ZIP   77643
Phone (###-###-####)   9154338774
Extension  
Alternate Phone (###-###-####)  
Fax (###-###-####)  
E-mail   jacob.benfield@basf.com

Title V General Information - Existing

1) Permit Type:   SOP
2) Permit Latitude Coordinate:   29 Deg 57 Min 10 Sec
3) Permit Longitude Coordinate:   93 Deg 53 Min 6 Sec
4) Is this submittal a new application or an
update to an existing application?   Update

4.1. Select the permit/project number for which
this update should be applied.   2551-36831

5) Does this application include Acid Rain
Program or Cross-State Air Pollution Rule
requirements?

 
No

Title V Attachments Existing

Attach OP-1 (Site Information Summary)
 
Attach OP-2 (Application for Permit Revision/Renewal)
 
Attach OP-ACPS (Application Compliance Plan and Schedule)
 
Attach OP-REQ1 (Application Area-Wide Applicability Determinations and General Information)
 
Attach OP-REQ2 (Negative Applicable Requirement Determinations)
 
Attach OP-REQ3 (Applicable Requirements Summary)
 
Attach OP-PBRSUP (Permits by Rule Supplemental Table)
 
Attach OP-SUMR (Individual Unit Summary for Revisions)
 
Attach OP-MON (Monitoring Requirements)
 
Attach OP-UA (Unit Attribute) Forms
 
If applicable, attach OP-AR1 (Acid Rain Permit Application)
 
Attach OP-CRO2 (Change of Responsible Official Information)
 



Attach OP-DEL (Delegation of Responsible Official)
 
Attach Void Request Form
 
Attach any other necessary information needed to complete the permit.
[File Properties]  
File Name

 
<a href=/ePermitsExternal/faces/file?
fileId=218911>WDP-O2551 BTP Renewal
36831 - September 2024 Responses.pdf</a>

Hash   8388F47D3A27E7CF108FBE458F19A77BF67B95088A66629D9563A9495FBE9DA5
MIME-Type   application/pdf
 
An additional space to attach any other necessary information needed to complete the permit.
 

Certification

I certify that I am the Responsible Official for this application and that, based on information and belief formed after
reasonable inquiry, the statements and information on this form are true, accurate, and complete.

1. I am John Lycan, the owner of the STEERS account ER075915.
2. I have the authority to sign this data on behalf of the applicant named above.
3. I have personally examined the foregoing and am familiar with its content and the content of any attachments, and

based upon my personal knowledge and/or inquiry of any individual responsible for information contained herein, that
this information is true, accurate, and complete.

4. I further certify that I have not violated any term in my TCEQ STEERS participation agreement and that I have no
reason to believe that the confidentiality or use of my password has been compromised at any time.

5. I understand that use of my password constitutes an electronic signature legally equivalent to my written signature.
6. I also understand that the attestations of fact contained herein pertain to the implementation, oversight and enforcemen

of a state and/or federal environmental program and must be true and complete to the best of my knowledge.
7. I am aware that criminal penalties may be imposed for statements or omissions that I know or have reason to believe

are untrue or misleading.
8. I am knowingly and intentionally signing Title V Existing 2551.
9. My signature indicates that I am in agreement with the information on this form, and authorize its submittal to the TCEQ

OWNER OPERATOR Signature: John Lycan OWNER OPERATOR
Account Number:   ER075915
Signature IP Address:   130.41.172.186
Signature Date:   2024-10-08
Signature Hash:   8B49C0B1E92A4B2BDCCECBBBBF5B90FB66C166A46F785936829EDAF1B9B98B7E
Form Hash Code at
time of Signature:   CC4610829D84DA2C1D08B8BEBB448395B50EA2057E7993E57DDA0D41D9D3B4A6

Submission

Reference Number:   The application reference number is 687236
Submitted by:   The application was submitted by

ER075915/John Lycan
Submitted Timestamp:   The application was submitted on 2024-10-08

at 10:42:06 CDT
Submitted From:   The application was submitted from IP address

130.41.172.186
Confirmation Number:   The confirmation number is 569580
Steers Version:   The STEERS version is 6.82



Permit Number:   The permit number is 2551

Additional Information

Application Creator: This account was created by Theresa C Hulvey





Below are responses to questions on the application for Federal Operating Permit O2551: 

1. Form OP-REQ1, Pages 85-86 – Question XII.B.1 was checked “Yes” indicating that a standard
permit is used in the permit area. XII.B.2 was checked “Yes” indicating it was the pollution
control project standard permit under 30 TAC 116.617.  However, there are no active standard
permit registrations listed in our NSR database for this site. Please remove the answers for
XII.B.2-B.16, correct XII.B.1 to “No”, and submit corrected pages. If you believe there is a
standard permit in use, please provide an explanation and the standard permit registration
number.

Response – OP-REQ1, Pages 85-86 are being re-submitted with this response. 

2. Form OP-REQ1,  Page 87
a. NSR permit 36644 was listed in section XII.G, NSR Authorizations with FCAA §112(g)

Requirements. This pertains to NSR permits that have case-by-case MACT requirements
since a MACT has not been promulgated for the necessary source category. If the NSR
permit does not contain that type of requirement, then it should be listed in section XII.H
instead (since that addresses the remainder of 30 TAC Chapter 116 permits). Please
confirm the proper section and submit a corrected page if needed.

b. AMOC 220 was listed in section XII.H. AMOCs are not authorizations that should be listed
on this form. Please remove AMOC 220 and submit a corrected page.

Response – OP-REQ1, Page 87 is being re-submitted with this response. 

3. Form OP-PBRSUP – Table B | Form OP-REQ1 – Page 88
a. PBRs 106.227/09/04/2000, 106.511/09/04/2000, 106.532/09/04/2000 are listed in Table B

of the OP-PBRSUP and are also required to be listed on Page 88 of the OP-REQ1. Please
update and redate the OP-REQ1 and provide me with a copy of the corrected page.

Response –  OP-REQ1, Page 88 is being re-submitted with this response. 

4. Form OP-UA5 | Unit IDs N-12 & N-13 – Prior to the completion of our rule analysis for MACT
DDDDD, these two units were entered on OP-UA5 in our database as a placeholder. I have
added requirements based on the OP-UA6 in the application. Please verify whether units N-12
and N-13 are process heaters or boilers as defined by MACT DDDDD. If they are process
heaters, please fill out the MACT DDDDD tables on OP-UA5 instead. If they are boilers, no
further updates are needed.

Response – N-12 and N-13 are process heaters, therefore OP-UA5, Table 6a is being submitted
with this response.



5. NSPS Kb Negative Applicability for Unit ID T280047 – For Revision No. 35 on the OP-2, Unit ID 
T280047 was requested to be added to GRPSV1K. However, this unit is listed on the OP-REQ2 
with a negative applicability reason for 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart Kb of “This source has a 
capacity of less than 19,800 gallons (75 m3)”. GRPSV1K already has an existing permit shield 
for NSPS Kb with a reason of “Capacity of storage vessel is less than 10,600 gallons.” Since 
every group member must have identical information, please confirm if the NSPS Kb reason 
should be updated to the newer language and also confirm that the other two existing permit 
shields should be retained by the group. Instead of listing T280047 on OP-REQ2, please list 
GRPSV1K with all desired permit shields and provide the updated form. 

Response – Unit ID T280047 should be included in GRPSV1K and the NSPS Kb negative 
applicability for the group should be updated to the new language, “The storage tanks have a 
capacity of less than 19,800 gallons (75 m3).” 

The negative applicability for Chapter 115, Storage of VOCs and NSPS YY are correct and do not 
need to be changed.   

An updated OP-REQ2 form is being submitted to update the NSPS Kb negative language for 
GRPSV1K and seven additional sources.   

 

6. NSPS NNN Negative Applicability for Unit ID T-5702 – The negative applicability reason for 
NSPS NNN cites rule overlap with MACT G and with MACT YY. While it is not as common for 
multiple MACTs to apply to the same source, the shield has been tentatively granted. However, 
the existing permit only has MACT G requirements for this unit. Please confirm if MACT YY is 
needed as well by listing it on OP-UA1. Or, if only MACT G applies, please revise the negative 
applicability reason on the OP-REQ2 and provide the updated form. 

Response – We agree that MACT YY is not applicable to Unit ID T-5702.  An updated OP-REQ2 
referencing only MACT G superseding NSPS NNN is being submitted. 

 

7. NSPS RRR Negative Applicability for Unit ID R-2501X – A permit shield was requested for 
NSPS RRR since it does not produce products listed in NSPS RRR and is not a process vent but 
is a wastewater treatment vent subject to MACT YY (part of unit ID HONWWTP). NSPS RRR is 
not potentially applicable to a wastewater vent, and permit shields are only granted for 
potentially applicable rules (for example, if R-2501X was a reactor process vent in chemical 
production but just not the specified chemicals, a permit shield could be granted). Therefore, 
the permit shield has not been added. Please note this does not add any requirements. Let me 
know if you have questions. 

Response – While the draft permit removes NSPS RRR regulatory requirements, the Emission 
Unit Name is ‘Spent Caustic Reactor’.  To avoid future confusion and the fact that it was once 
subject to NSPS RRR, we are asking to have a permit shield for NSPS RRR.  

  



8. Form OP­UA58 – Unit ID T-8201 – There are discrepancies in the existing answer codes on 
Table 3c of OP-UA58 for MACT G. Please provide an updated OP-UA58 form with the 
corrections below, re-dated. 
a. The form instructions indicate that Performance Tests should not be answered if the 

Control Device Type code is “FLARE”. Please remove the answer for Performance Tests. 
b. Please provide an answer for the Continuous Monitoring question. The form instructions do 

not mention that units with a Control Device Type code of “FLARE” should also answer this, 
but that is an error. This information is needed. 

Response –  Unit ID T-8201 is Group 2 MACT G, is only subject to Site-Wide Special Terms and 
Conditions, and OP-UA58 is not required to be submitted.  Responses in the originally 
submitted OP-REQ1 Sections VIII.C.20 through VIII.C.23 are consistent with this 
determination.  

9. Unit IDs N-15 & N-15A – For the new operating scenarios incorporating the recently approved 
AMOC for 30 TAC Chapter 115, Vent Gas Control, additional monitoring is required since the 
applicable citations do not include adequate monitoring or recordkeeping requirements. 
Please provide an OP-MON form identifying periodic monitoring for Unit ID N-15, Index No. 
R5121-AMOC and for Unit N-15A, Index No. R5121-AMOC. 

Response – The monitoring requirements in the AMOC are sufficient to meet Periodic 
Monitoring and BTP will comply with the monitoring specified in the AMOC, therefore OP-MONs 
are not required. 

 
10. Major NSR Summary Table – Please review the table for NSR 36644/PSDTX903M5/N007M1 

and mark any updates needed based on the 08/10/2023 action. 

Response – The Major NSR Summary Table does not require any updates as the 08/10/2023 
action was an alteration with no changes in emissions and no changes to Special Conditions 
(SC) except for the addition of SC 13.G.  Since the NSR Summary Table only lists high level SC 
numbers (ie. SC 13) there are no updates required. 

 

Working Draft Permit -  A working draft permit was provided via email dated 9/9/2024. 

Response – As was discussed between our consultant, Clara Vista Environmental LLC and you on 
September 17th, BTP will conduct a more thorough detailed review of the working draft permit with 
the next version. 

 

Please note that any updates to the previously submitted OP-2 and OP-REQ2 form are presented 
via redline strikeout in the versions submitted with this submittal.  We are also submitting a revised 
OP-1, Page 3, to update the Technical Contact for the project. 









Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
Application Area-Wide Applicability Determinations and General Information 

Form OP-REQ1 
Federal Operating Permit Program 

TCEQ - 10043 (APDG 5733v46, Revised 11/20) OP-REQ1 
This form is for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and  
may be revised periodically. (Title V IMS Release 11/20) Page 88 of 88 

Date: 

Permit No.: 

RN No.: 

For SOP applications, answer ALL questions unless otherwise directed. 
For GOP applications, answer ONLY these question unless otherwise directed.

Form OP-REQ1:  Page 88 

XII. NSR Authorizations (Attach additional sheets if necessary for sections E-J)

I. Permits by Rule (30 TAC Chapter 106) for the Application Area

A list of selected Permits by Rule (previously referred to 
FOP application is available in the instructions. 

as standard exemptions) that are required to be listed in the 

PBR No.: Version No./Date: 

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

J. Municipal Solid Waste and Industrial Hazardous Waste Permits With an Air Addendum

Permit No.: Issuance Date: 

Permit No.: Issuance Date: 

Permit No.: Issuance Date: 

Permit No.: Issuance Date: 



 

TCEQ 10025 (APD-ID 39v2.0, revised 09/23) OP-UA5 
This form is for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and may be revised periodically. (Title V release 09/23) Page _______ of ________ 

Process Heater/Furnace Attributes 
Form OP-UA5 (Page 10) 

Federal Operating Permit Program 
Table 6a:  Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 63 (40 CFR Part 63) 

Subchapter DDDDD:  Industrial, Commercial, and Institutional Process Heaters 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

 
Date Permit No. Regulated Entity No. 

09/30/2024 O-2551 RN100216977 

 
Unit ID No. SOP/GOP Index No. Commence Table Applicability HCl Emission HCl-CMS 

N-12 63DDDDD EXIST T3.3G1   

N-13 63DDDDD EXIST T3.3G1   

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

 
 



Date: 09/30/2024
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
Omit Group 1 MACT G wastewater requirements.  The source is subject to site-wide only 
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



ID No. Applicable
Form

A 9 T-5702
OP-2

OP-REQ2
NSPS NNN

A 10 R-2501X
OP-2

OP-REQ2
NSPS RRR

A 18 TK-2501B
OP-2

OP-REQ2
NSPS Kb

A 19 TK-2501
OP-2

OP-REQ2
NSPS Kb

A 35 T280047
OP-2

OP-SUMR
NSPS Kb

A 36 TK-1501

OP-2
OP-SUMR
OP-UA3

OP-REQ2

NSPS Kb

A 37 TK-2210

OP-2
OP-SUMR
OP-UA3

OP-REQ2

NSPS Kb

§60.110b(a) This source has a capacity of less than 19,800 gallons (75 m3).

§60.110b(b)

§63.110(d)(4)

§63.1100(g)(2)(ii)

Group 1 process vent subject to 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart G and 40 CFR 
Part 60, Subpart NNN, must comply with 40 CFR, Part 63, Subpart G.

Process Vent subject to MACT YY and NSPS NNN are required to comply 
with process vent requirements of MACT YY. 

§60.110b(a) This source has a capacity of less than 19,800 gallons (75 m3).

Form OP-REQ2
Negative Applicable/Superseded Requirement Determinations

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality

Unit AI Revision 
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
9/30/2024

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

E. Indicate the alternate language(s) in which public notice is required: 
 



From: Kyle Murray <Kyle.Murray@tceq.texas.gov>  
Sent: Monday, September 9, 2024 2:50 PM 
To: Jacob Benfield <jacob.benfield@basf.com> 
Subject: [EXT] Working Draft Permit -- FOP O2551/Project 36831, BASF TOTALEnergies Petrochemicals, 
LLC

Good afternoon Mr. Benfield, 

I have conducted a technical review of the renewal application for BASF TOTALEnergies 
Petrochemicals, LLC. An electronic copy of the Working Draft Permit (WDP) is attached for 
your review.  This WDP contains the TCEQ determination of applicable requirements based 
on the information submitted in your application, and any updates provided. 

Please review the WDP and submit to me any comments you have on the working draft 
permit by Wednesday, October 9th. 

In addition, upon further evaluation of your federal operating permit application, we have 
identified some potential discrepancies that need to be addressed to finalize the permit. 
Please submit responses to the following items in concurrence with your WDP comments. 

1. Form OP-REQ1, Pages 85-86 – Question XII.B.1 was checked “Yes” indicating that
a standard permit is used in the permit area. XII.B.2 was checked “Yes” indicating it
was the pollution control project standard permit under 30 TAC 116.617.  However, 
there are no active standard permit registrations listed in our NSR database for this 
site. Please remove the answers for XII.B.2-B.16, correct XII.B.1 to “No”, and submit 
corrected pages. If you believe there is a standard permit in use, please provide an 
explanation and the standard permit registration number. 



2. Form OP-REQ1,  Page 87
a. NSR permit 36644 was listed in section XII.G, NSR Authorizations with FCAA

§112(g) Requirements. This pertains to NSR permits that have case-by-case
MACT requirements since a MACT has not been promulgated for the
necessary source category. If the NSR permit does not contain that type of
requirement, then it should be listed in section XII.H instead (since that
addresses the remainder of 30 TAC Chapter 116 permits). Please confirm the
proper section and submit a corrected page if needed.

b. AMOC 220 was listed in section XII.H. AMOCs are not authorizations that
should be listed on this form. Please remove AMOC 220 and submit a
corrected page.

3. Form OP-PBRSUP – Table B | Form OP-REQ1 – Page 88
a. PBRs 106.227/09/04/2000, 106.511/09/04/2000, 106.532/09/04/2000 are

listed in Table B of the OP-PBRSUP and are also required to be listed on Page
88 of the OP-REQ1. Please update and redate the OP-REQ1 and provide me
with a copy of the corrected page.

4. Form OP-UA5 | Unit IDs N-12 & N-13 – Prior to the completion of our rule analysis
for MACT DDDDD, these two units were entered on OP-UA5 in our database as a
placeholder. I have added requirements based on the OP-UA6 in the application.
Please verify whether units N-12 and N-13 are process heaters or boilers as defined
by MACT DDDDD. If they are process heaters, please fill out the MACT DDDDD
tables on OP-UA5 instead. If they are boilers, no further updates are needed.

5. NSPS Kb Negative Applicability for Unit ID T280047 – For Revision No. 35 on the
OP-2, Unit ID T280047 was requested to be added to GRPSV1K. However, this unit is
listed on the OP-REQ2 with a negative applicability reason for 40 CFR Part 60,
Subpart Kb of “This source has a capacity of less than 19,800 gallons (75 m3)”.
GRPSV1K already has an existing permit shield for NSPS Kb with a reason of
“Capacity of storage vessel is less than 10,600 gallons.” Since every group member
must have identical information, please confirm if the NSPS Kb reason should be
updated to the newer language and also confirm that the other two existing permit
shields should be retained by the group. Instead of listing T280047 on OP-REQ2,
please list GRPSV1K with all desired permit shields and provide the updated form.

6. NSPS NNN Negative Applicability for Unit ID T-5702 – The negative applicability
reason for NSPS NNN cites rule overlap with MACT G and with MACT YY. While it is
not as common for multiple MACTs to apply to the same source, the shield has



been tentatively granted. However, the existing permit only has MACT G 
requirements for this unit. Please confirm if MACT YY is needed as well by listing it 
on OP-UA1. Or, if only MACT G applies, please revise the negative applicability 
reason on the OP-REQ2 and provide the updated form. 

7. NSPS RRR Negative Applicability for Unit ID R-2501X – A permit shield was 
requested for NSPS RRR since it does not produce products listed in NSPS RRR and 
is not a process vent but is a wastewater treatment vent subject to MACT YY (part of 
unit ID HONWWTP). NSPS RRR is not potentially applicable to a wastewater vent, 
and permit shields are only granted for potentially applicable rules (for example, if 
R-2501X was a reactor process vent in chemical production but just not the 
specified chemicals, a permit shield could be granted). Therefore, the permit shield 
has not been added. Please note this does not add any requirements. Let me know 
if you have questions. 

8. Form OP-UA58 – Unit ID T-8201 – There are discrepancies in the existing answer 
codes on Table 3c of OP-UA58 for MACT G. Please provide an updated OP-UA58 
form with the corrections below, re-dated.  

a. The form instructions indicate that Performance Tests should not be 
answered if the Control Device Type code is “FLARE”. Please remove the 
answer for Performance Tests. 

b. Please provide an answer for the Continuous Monitoring question. The form 
instructions do not mention that units with a Control Device Type code of 
“FLARE” should also answer this, but that is an error. This information is 
needed.  

9. Unit IDs N-15 & N-15A – For the new operating scenarios incorporating the recently 
approved AMOC for 30 TAC Chapter 115, Vent Gas Control, additional monitoring is 
required since the applicable citations do not include adequate monitoring or 
recordkeeping requirements. Please provide an OP-MON form identifying periodic 
monitoring for Unit ID N-15, Index No. R5121-AMOC and for Unit N-15A, Index No. 
R5121-AMOC. 

10. Major NSR Summary Table – Please review the table for NSR 
36644/PSDTX903M5/N007M1 and mark any updates needed based on the 
08/10/2023 action. 

  
Please review the second portion of the “SOP Technical Review Fact Sheet” located 
at http://www.tceq.texas.gov/assets/public/permitting/air/Guidance/Title_V/sop_wdp_fac
tsheet.pdf. This guidance contains important information regarding WDP review and 
comment procedures.  
  
Note that a Certification by Responsible Official (Form OP-CRO1) for any uncertified 
application information, including application updates supporting the WDP comments, is 

https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.tceq.texas.gov%2Fassets%2Fpublic%2Fpermitting%2Fair%2FGuidance%2FTitle_V%2Fsop_wdp_factsheet.pdf&data=05%7C02%7CKyle.Murray%40tceq.texas.gov%7C19e5e3521cbb47c06b9508dce7c66b10%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638640087763836291%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=hj4JAwfnNkovwsE6jL7WtyeLe%2FY0tzJf5vl%2FO4ICo4c%3D&reserved=0
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.tceq.texas.gov%2Fassets%2Fpublic%2Fpermitting%2Fair%2FGuidance%2FTitle_V%2Fsop_wdp_factsheet.pdf&data=05%7C02%7CKyle.Murray%40tceq.texas.gov%7C19e5e3521cbb47c06b9508dce7c66b10%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638640087763836291%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=hj4JAwfnNkovwsE6jL7WtyeLe%2FY0tzJf5vl%2FO4ICo4c%3D&reserved=0


required.   After final review of the WDP, additional changes supported by application 
updates may require certification.  I will advise you of these changes at a later date.  Prior 
to transmittal of the Public Notice/Announcement Authorization Package, a duly signed 
OP-CRO1 form may be required which includes the specific dates or time-period of all 
submitted application documentation that was not previously certified.  I will advise you of 
this requirement prior to sending the Public Notice/Announcement Authorization. 
  
Application updates may now be submitted through Title V STEERS. Any application 
updates that are submitted by the RO/DAR through STEERS are certified and do not require 
the submittal of an original signature OP-CRO1. Application updates that are provided 
through email or physical mail require certification using an original signature OP-CRO1. 
  
Please notify me when these updates have been submitted. 
  
As required on Form OP-1, question IV.D, please remember the FOP application and 
all application updates must be submitted to EPA Region 6 
at R6AirPermitsTX@epa.gov and to the TCEQ regional office having jurisdiction. This 
submittal information can be found on our website at Where to Submit FOP 
Applications and Permit-Related Documents. 
  
Contact me if you have any questions regarding the guidelines, the project schedule, or 
any other details regarding your application or permit. 
  
Thank you for your cooperation. 
  
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

  

mailto:R6AirPermitsTX@epa.gov
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.tceq.texas.gov%2Fpermitting%2Fair%2Ftitlev%2Fsubmittal.html&data=05%7C02%7CKyle.Murray%40tceq.texas.gov%7C19e5e3521cbb47c06b9508dce7c66b10%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638640087763860820%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=7MABBnDqWygE8t7ZzZh7PHY%2FUIM1cFBD8ZIcxiY4AK8%3D&reserved=0
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.tceq.texas.gov%2Fpermitting%2Fair%2Ftitlev%2Fsubmittal.html&data=05%7C02%7CKyle.Murray%40tceq.texas.gov%7C19e5e3521cbb47c06b9508dce7c66b10%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638640087763860820%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=7MABBnDqWygE8t7ZzZh7PHY%2FUIM1cFBD8ZIcxiY4AK8%3D&reserved=0
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From: John B Lycan <john.lycan@basf.com> 
Sent: Friday, July 19, 2024 2:24 AM 
To: Kyle Murray 
Cc: Nina Hendrickx; Angela R Hodgkinson 
Subject: Re: [EXT] FW: Technical Review -- FOP O2551/Project No. 36831, BASF 

TOTALEnergies Petrochemicals LLC, Ethylene/Propylene Cracker and 
Cogeneration 

 
Hi Kyle , 
 
Not sure what happened with Nina email, I am CC ing her in this note. Darren Lanthier has 
elected to take another position outside the company. Angela can make sure the right 
people are involved. 
 
Thank you for reaching out. 
 
John 

 
From: Kyle Murray <Kyle.Murray@tceq.texas.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, July 18, 2024 6:28 PM 
To: John B Lycan <john.lycan@basf.com> 
Subject: [EXT] FW: Technical Review -- FOP O2551/Project No. 36831, BASF TOTALEnergies 
Petrochemicals LLC, Ethylene/Propylene Cracker and Cogeneration  
  

Good morning Mr. Lycan, 
  
I have been assigned to this FOP renewal application and have started the technical review 
process. I reached out to the DAR on file, Nina Hendrickx - nina.hendrickx@basf.com, and 
the technical contact listed in the application, Darren Lanthier - 
darren.lanthier@basf.com, and had both emails bounce back. Are these still valid 
contacts or is there a newly designated technical contact I can communicate with for this 
project? 
  
Sincerely, 
  
Kyle J. Murray 
Permit Reviewer 
OA/Air Permits Division/OP Section 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
MC 163, P.O. Box 13087 
Austin, TX 78711-3087 
kyle.murray@tceq.texas.gov 
  

 You don't often get email from kyle.murray@tceq.texas.gov. Learn why this is important  

mailto:Kyle.Murray@tceq.texas.gov
mailto:john.lycan@basf.com
mailto:nina.hendrickx@basf.com
mailto:darren.lanthier@basf.com
mailto:kyle.murray@tceq.texas.gov
mailto:kyle.murray@tceq.texas.gov
https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification


Phone:   (512) 239-1279 
Fax:         (512) 239-1400 
  

 

  How are we doing?  Fill out our online customer 
satisfaction survey 
at www.tceq.texas.gov/customersurvey 

  
  
  
  
From: Kyle Murray  
Sent: Thursday, July 18, 2024 11:07 AM 
To: nina.hendrikx@basf.com; BTPEnvironmental@basf.com 
Subject: FW: Technical Review -- FOP O2551/Project No. 36831, BASF TOTALEnergies Petrochemicals 
LLC, Ethylene/Propylene Cracker and Cogeneration 
  
Good morning, 
  
I reached out to the technical contact, Darren Lanthier / darren.lanthier@basf.com, listed 
on this project application and had the email bounce back. Is Mr. Lanthier still a valid 
contact or has a new technical contact been designated for this project?  
  
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
Sent: Thursday, July 18, 2024 8:48 AM 
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To: darren.lanthier@basf.com 
Subject: Technical Review -- FOP O2551/Project No. 36831, BASF TOTALEnergies Petrochemicals LLC, 
Ethylene/Propylene Cracker and Cogeneration 
  
Good morning Mr. Lanthier, 
I have been assigned to the Federal Operating Permit (FOP) renewal application of Permit 
No. O2551 for BASF TOTALEnergies Petrochemicals LLC, NAFTA Regional Olefins 
Complex, Ethylene / Propylene Cracker and Cogeneration. This application has been 
assigned Project No. 36831. Please address all correspondence pertaining to this permit 
application, including any updates, to me at the address below, and use both the Permit 
and Project reference numbers above to facilitate tracking. 
In addition, I wanted to let you know that EPA has, on occasion, objected to Title V permits 
based on the following:  

a.    NSR permit and PBR monitoring sufficiency – please refer to our periodic 
monitoring guidance for reference of monitoring that EPA has, so far, 
considered sufficient. 

b.    Reference to confidential business information (CBI) in NSR permits and 
PBR submittals. 

c.    High level terms in the SOP Applicable Requirement Summary Table. 
The high-level terms are sometimes used in SOPs when unit attribute forms 
have not yet been updated due to regulatory amendments. 

d.    Accuracy of PBR information provided on the supplemental table and in the 
permit – please refer to Forms OP-PBRSUP and OP-REQ1 Instructions. 

If you have any questions or concerns on any of these items or think you need to do any 
additional updates, let me know and we can discuss further. 
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
Optional:  Request any information that may have been noted as deficient or out-of-date 
during a preliminary project review (e.g. OP-1 with current contact data, current OP-REQ1, 
etc.), and include a deadline. 
Please review the “SOP Technical Review Fact Sheet” located 
at http://www.tceq.texas.gov/assets/public/permitting/air/Guidance/Title_V/sop_wdp_fac
tsheet.pdf. This guidance contains important information regarding the review process and 
application update procedures.  Contact me if you have any questions regarding the 
guidelines, the project schedule, or any other details regarding your application or permit. 
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
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From: Jacob Benfield <jacob.benfield@basf.com> 
Sent: Thursday, July 18, 2024 1:24 PM 
To: Kyle Murray; nina.hendrikx@basf.com 
Subject: RE: [EXT] FW: Technical Review -- FOP O2551/Project No. 36831, BASF 

TOTALEnergies Petrochemicals LLC, Ethylene/Propylene Cracker and 
Cogeneration 

 
Kyle, 
 
Darren is no longer with us. You can contact me. 
 
 
 
 
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
To: nina.hendrikx@basf.com; BTPEnvironmental <BTPEnvironmental@basf.com> 
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
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July 3, 2024 
THE HONORABLE ROBERT NICHOLS 
TEXAS SENATE 
PO BOX 12068 
AUSTIN TX  78711-2068 
 
 
Re: Accepted Federal Operating Permit Renewal Application 

Project Number:  36831 
Permit Number:  O2551 
BASF TOTALEnergies Petrochemicals LLC 
Ethylene / Propylene Cracker And Cogeneration 
Port Arthur, Jefferson County 
Regulated Entity Number:  RN100216977 
Customer Reference Number:  CN604166967 

 
Dear Senator Nichols: 
 
This letter notifies you that the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality has received a federal 
operating permit (FOP) renewal application for a site located in your district. As part of this permitting 
process, the applicant is required to publish a formal newspaper public notice. The notice will inform the 
public of their right to make comments or request a public hearing. This link to an electronic map of the 
site or facility's general location is provided as a public courtesy and not part of the application or notice. 
For exact location, refer to application. https://gisweb.tceq.texas.gov/LocationMapper/?marker=-
93.885,29.952777&level=13. 
 
The FOP program regulates both new and existing major sources of emissions. The goal of the program 
is to improve air quality in Texas through increased compliance by codifying existing applicable regulatory 
requirements into the FOP. The FOP provides the applicant authorization to operate the equipment at the 
site. The FOP identifies and codifies air emission requirements (known as applicable requirements) that 
apply to the emission units at the site. The FOP does not authorize construction of emission units or 
emissions from those units. The New Source Review (NSR) permit is the mechanism for these 
authorizations. 
 

https://gisweb.tceq.texas.gov/LocationMapper/?marker=-93.885,29.952777&level=13
https://gisweb.tceq.texas.gov/LocationMapper/?marker=-93.885,29.952777&level=13


The Honorable Robert Nichols 
Page 2 
July 3, 2024 
 
 
Re:  Accepted Federal Operating Permit Renewal Application 
 
 

 

This letter is being sent to you for information only and no action is required. If you need further 
information, please contact me at (512) 239-1250. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Samuel Short, Deputy Director 
Air Permits Division 
Office of Air 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
 
 



Jon Niermann, Chairman 

Bobby Janecka, Commissioner 

Catarina R. Gonzales, Commissioner 

Kelly Keel, Executive Director 

TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 
Protecting Texas by Reducing and Preventing Pollution 

 

P.O. Box 13087   •   Austin, Texas 78711-3087   •   512-239-1000   •   tceq.texas.gov 

How is our customer service?     tceq.texas.gov/customersurvey 
printed on recycled paper 

 

July 3, 2024 
THE HONORABLE CHRISTIAN MANUEL 
TEXAS HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 
PO BOX 2910 
AUSTIN TX  78768-2910 
 
 
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

 
Dear Representative Manuel: 
 
This letter notifies you that the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality has received a federal 
operating permit (FOP) renewal application for a site located in your district. As part of this permitting 
process, the applicant is required to publish a formal newspaper public notice.  The notice will inform the 
public of their right to make comments or request a public hearing.  This link to an electronic map of the 
site or facility's general location is provided as a public courtesy and not part of the application or notice.  
For exact location, refer to application. https://gisweb.tceq.texas.gov/LocationMapper/?marker=-
93.885,29.952777&level=13. 
 
The FOP program regulates both new and existing major sources of emissions.  The goal of the program 
is to improve air quality in Texas through increased compliance by codifying existing applicable regulatory 
requirements into the FOP.  The FOP provides the applicant authorization to operate the equipment at 
the site. 
 
This letter is being sent to you for information only and no action is required.  If you need further 
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
how to locate this site:   Gate 99, Intersection of Hwy 73 and Hwy 366

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

Organization Name   BASF TOTALENERGIES PETROCHEMICALS
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

Organization Name   BASF TOTALEnergies Petrochemicals LLC
Prefix   MR
First   Darren
Middle   Keith
Last   Lanthier
Suffix  
Credentials  
Title   Environmental Specialist
Enter new address or copy one from list:   Responsible Official Contact
Mailing Address  
Address Type   Domestic
Mailing Address (include Suite or Bldg. here, if   PO BOX 2506



applicable)
Routing (such as Mail Code, Dept., or Attn:)  
City   PORT ARTHUR
State   TX
ZIP   77643
Phone (###-###-####)   4099193492
Extension  
Alternate Phone (###-###-####)   4099605033
Fax (###-###-####)  
E-mail   BTPEnvironmental@basf.com

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
update to an existing application?   New Application

4.1. What type of permitting action are you
applying for?   Renewal

4.1.1. Are there any permits that should be
voided upon issuance of this permit application
through permit conversion?

 
No

4.1.2. Are there any permits that should be
voided upon issuance of this permit application
through permit consolidation?

 
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
fileId=178651>BTP TV Renewal and Revision
Application.pdf</a>

Hash   07D92BEFCCAC1619390F59BBF70F39874B035F78C4D923A33B48EF6697AC398D
MIME-Type   application/pdf
 
An additional space to attach any other necessary information needed to complete the permit.
 

Expedite Title V

1) Per Texas Health and Safety Code, Section
382.05155, does the applicant want to expedite
the processing of this application?

 
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
Signature Date:   2024-01-18
Signature Hash:   8B49C0B1E92A4B2BDCCECBBBBF5B90FB66C166A46F785936829EDAF1B9B98B7E
Form Hash Code at
time of Signature:   5D9A65B6EA51DEB6FFD97E869015D76F78F41D1EB4ACE218202019244EA8C1B1

Submission



Reference Number:   The application reference number is 617603
Submitted by:   The application was submitted by

ER075915/John Lycan
Submitted Timestamp:   The application was submitted on 2024-01-18

at 12:59:33 CST
Submitted From:   The application was submitted from IP address

130.41.172.186
Confirmation Number:   The confirmation number is 511137
Steers Version:   The STEERS version is 6.73
Permit Number:   The permit number is 2551

Additional Information

Application Creator: This account was created by David C Smalley
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BASF TotalEnergies Petrochemical LLC O-2551 Renewal and Revision
Port Arthur, Jefferson County, Texas January 2024 

I. Introduction

BASF TOTALEnergies Petrochemicals LLC (BTP) operates the BTP Ethylene/Propylene 
Cracker and Cogeneration facility in Port Arthur, Texas.  Operation of the Ethylene/Propylene 
Cracker and Cogeneration facility is authorized by Federal Operating Permit (FOP) No. O-2551, 
which was initially issued on November 3, 2004, and was last renewed on July 25, 2019.  Two 
subsequent revisions were approved on January 27, 2021 (Project 30530) and February 22, 2022 
(Project 32745). 

The purpose of this Title V permit application is for the Renewal and Revision of Permit Number 
O-2551.  BTP is submitting the renewal application prior to the January 25, 2024, deadline for
FOP O-2551 which will expire on July 25, 2024.  In addition, BTP is also submitting a revision
application for this permit.
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BASF TotalEnergies Petrochemical LLC O-2551 Renewal and Revision
Port Arthur, Jefferson County, Texas January 2024 

II. Description of Changes

Revision 1 – Form OP-REQ1 has been updated since the last revision of FOP No. O-2551.  Therefore, 
the most recent version of this form has been provided per TCEQ guidance. 

Revision 2 – Form OP-PBRSUP is being submitted for the first time, per TCEQ guidance. 

Revision 3 – Permit 36644 was altered on June 14, 2023, and is to be included in FOP No. O-2551. 

Revision 4 – An Alternative Method of Control (AMOC) Plan, AMOC No. 220 was approved by the 
TCEQ on April 28, 2023, and is to be included in FOP No. O-2551. 

Revisions 5 and 6 – Adds a new scenario for N-15 and N-15A as it relates to AMOC No. 220. 

Revisions 7 and 8 – Omits Group 1 MACT G requirements for HONWWTP and T-8201 as the sources 
are subject to sitewide only MACT G requirements. 

Revision 9 – Removes NSPS NNN requirements for T-5702 as source is subject to MACT G and MACT 
YY.  Negative applicability for NSPS NNN is being added. 

Revisions 10 – Removes NSPS RRR requirements for R-2501X as it does not produce a product listed 
under NSPS RRR and it is not considered a process vent.  Negative applicability for NSPS RRR is being 
added. 

Revisions 11 and 12 – Updates Unit IDs to coincide with facility records. 

Revisions 13 through 17 – Form OP-UA6 is provided to add detailed rules to sources subject to 40 CFR 
63, Subpart DDDDD. 

Revisions 18 and 19 – Form OP-REQ2 is provided to add negative applicability to NSPS Kb to sources. 

Revision 20 – Removes scenarios associated with X-8502. 

Revisions 21 through 27 – Adds sources to GRPINORGSV. 

Revisions 28 through 35 – Adds sources to GRPSV1K. 

Revisions 36 through 40 – Form OP-UA3 is provided to add tanks to FOP O-2551.  OP-REQ2 is 
provided to add negative applicability to NSPS Kb. 

2



BASF TotalEnergies Petrochemical LLC O-2551 Renewal and Revision
Port Arthur, Jefferson County, Texas January 2024 

III. Administrative Forms

The following Administrative Forms are included in this application: 

OP-CRO1: CERTIFICATION BY RESPONSIBLE OFFICIAL 

OP-ACPS: APPLICATION COMPLIANCE PLAN AND SCHEDULE 

OP-1:  SITE INFORMATION SUMMARY 

OP-2:  APPLICATION FOR PERMIT REVISION/RENEWAL 

OP-SUMR:  INDIVIDUAL UNIT SUMMARY FOR REVISIONS 
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TCEQ - 10100 (APDG 5876v4, Revised 07/17) OP-ACPS 
This form is for use by sources subject to air quality permit requirements 
and may be revised periodically. 

Page _____ of _____ 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
Form OP-ACPS 

Application Compliance Plan and Schedule 

Date: 01/17/2024 Regulated Entity No.:  100216977 Permit No.:  O-2551 

Company Name:  BASF TotalEnergies Petrochemical 
LLC 

Area Name:  Ethylene / Propylene Cracker and 
Cogeneration 

• Part 1 of this form must be submitted with all initial FOP applications and renewal applications.

• The Responsible Official must use Form OP-CRO1 (Certification by Responsible Official) to certify
information contained in this form in accordance with 30 TAC § 122.132(d)(8).

Part 1 

A. Compliance Plan — Future Activity Committal Statement

The Responsible Official commits, utilizing reasonable effort, to the following: 
As the responsible official it is my intent that all emission units shall continue to be in compliance with all 
applicable requirements they are currently in compliance with, and all emission units shall be in compliance 
by the compliance dates with any applicable requirements that become effective during the permit term. 

B. Compliance Certification - Statement for Units in Compliance*
(Indicate response by entering an “X” in the appropriate column)

1. With the exception of those emission units listed in the Compliance Schedule section
of this form (Part 2, below), and based, at minimum, on the compliance method
specified in the associated applicable requirements, are all emission units addressed
in this application in compliance with all their respective applicable requirements as
identified in this application?

 YES  NO 

2. Are there any non-compliance situations addressed in the Compliance Schedule
Section of this form (Part 2)?

 YES  NO 

3. If the response to Item B.2, above, is “Yes,” indicate the total number of Part 2
attachments included in this submittal. (For reference only)

* For Site Operating Permits (SOPs), the complete application should be consulted for applicable
requirements and their corresponding emission units when assessing compliance status.
For General Operating Permits (GOPs), the application documentation, particularly Form OP-REQ1
should be consulted as well as the requirements contained in the appropriate General Permits portion of
30 TAC Chapter 122.

Compliance should be assessed based, at a minimum, on the required monitoring, testing, record
keeping, and/or reporting requirements, as appropriate, associated with the applicable requirement in
question.
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

Form OP-1 (Page 1) 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

Please print or type all information. Direct any questions regarding this application form to the Air Permits Division at 
(512) 239-1250 or to the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality, Office of Air, Air Permits Division (MC 163),
P.O. Box 13087, Austin, Texas 78711-3087.

I. Company Identifying Information

A. Company Name:  BASF TOTALEnergies Petrochemicals LLC

B. Customer Reference Number (CN): CN 604166967

C. Submittal Date (mm/dd/yyyy):  01/17/2024

II. Site Information

A. Site Name:  NAFTA Regional Olefins Complex

B. Regulated Entity Reference Number (RN): RN100216977

C. Indicate affected state(s) required to review permit application: (Check the appropriate box[es].)

 AR  CO  KS  LA  NM  OK  N/A 

D. Indicate all pollutants for which the site is a major source based on the site’s potential to emit:
(Check the appropriate box[es].)

 VOC  NOX  SO2  PM10  CO  Pb  HAPS 

Other:  GHG 

E. Is the site a non-major source subject to the Federal Operating Permit Program?  YES  NO 

F. Is the site within a local program area jurisdiction?  YES  NO 

G. Will emissions averaging be used to comply with any Subpart of 40 CFR Part 63?  YES  NO 

H. Indicate the 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart(s) that will use emissions averaging:

III. Permit Type

A. Type of Permit Requested: (Select only one response )

 Site Operating Permit (SOP)  Temporary Operating Permit (TOP)  General Operating Permit (GOP) 
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

Form OP-1 (Page 2) 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

 
IV. Initial Application Information (Complete for Initial Issuance Applications Only.) 

A. Is this submittal an abbreviated or a full application?  Abbreviated  Full 

B. If this is a full application, is the submittal a follow-up to an abbreviated application?  YES  NO 

C. If this is an abbreviated application, is this an early submittal for a combined 
 SOP and Acid Rain permit?  YES  NO 

D. Has an electronic copy of this application been submitted (or is being submitted) to EPA? 
 (Refer to the form instructions for additional information.)  YES  NO 

E. Has the required Public Involvement Plan been included with this application?  YES  NO 

V. Confidential Information 

A. Is confidential information submitted in conjunction with this application?  YES  NO 

VI. Responsible Official (RO) Identifying Information 

RO Name Prefix: (  Mr.  Mrs.  Ms.  Dr.) 

RO Full Name:  John Lycan 

RO Title:  Vice President Port Arthur Site Manager 

Employer Name:  BASF Corporation 

Mailing Address:  P.O. Box 2506 

City:  Port Arthur 

State:  Texas  

ZIP Code:  77643-2506 

Territory: 

Country:  USA 

Foreign Postal Code: 

Internal Mail Code:   

Telephone No.:  409-960-5224 

Fax No.:  409-960-1750 

Email:  john.lycan@basf.com 
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

Technical Contact Full Name:  Darren Lanthier 

Technical Contact Title:  Environmental 

Employer Name:  BASF Corporation 

Mailing Address:   P.O. Box 2506 

City:  Port Arthur 

State:  TX 

ZIP Code:  77643 

Territory: 

Country:  USA 

Foreign Postal Code: 

Internal Mail Code: 

Telephone No.:  409-919-3492 

Fax No.: 

Email:  darren.lanthier@basf.com 

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

Form OP-1 (Page 4) 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

 
IX. Off-Site Permit Request 

(Optional for applicants requesting to hold the FOP and records at an off-site location.) 

A. Office/Facility Name: 

B. Physical Address: 

City: 

State: 

ZIP Code: 

Territory: 

Country: 

Foreign Postal Code: 

C. Physical Location: 

 

 

 

D. Contact Name Prefix: (  Mr.  Mrs.  Ms.  Dr.) 

Contact Full Name: 

E. Telephone No.: 

X. Application Area Information 

A. Area Name:  Ethylene / Propylene Cracker and Cogeneration 

B. Physical Address: Intersection of Hwy 73 and Hwy 366, Gate 99 

City:  Port Arthur 

State:  TX 

ZIP Code:  77642 

C. Physical Location:  Intersection of Hwy 73 and Hwy 366, Gate 99 

 

 

 

D. Nearest City:   Port Arthur 

E. State: TX 

F. ZIP Code:  77643 
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

Contact Person Full Name:  Darren Lanthier 

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

Form OP-1 (Page 6) 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

 
XII. Delinquent Fees and Penalties 

Notice:  This form will not be processed until all delinquent fees and/or penalties owed to the TCEQ or the Office of 
Attorney General on behalf of the TCEQ are paid in accordance with the “Delinquent Fee and Penalty Protocol.” 

Complete Sections XIII and XIV for Acid Rain Permit and CSAPR applications only. Please include a copy of the 
Certificate of Representation submitted to EPA. 

XIII. Designated Representative (DR) Identifying Information 

DR Name Prefix: (  Mr.  Mrs.  Ms.  Dr.) 

DR Full Name: 

DR Title: 

Employer Name: 

Mailing Address: 

City: 

State: 

ZIP Code: 

Territory: 

Country: 

Foreign Postal Code: 

Internal Mail Code: 

Telephone No.: 

Fax No.: 

Email: 
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

Form OP-1 (Page 7) 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

 
 

Complete Sections XIII and XIV for Acid Rain Permit and CSAPR applications only. Please include a copy of the 
Certificate of Representation submitted to EPA. 

XIV. Alternate Designated Representative (ADR) Identifying Information 

ADR Name Prefix: (  Mr.  Mrs.  Ms.  Dr.) 

ADR Full Name: 

ADR Title:   

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
may be revised periodically. (Title V release 03/10) Page _____ of _______  

Federal Operating Permit Program 
Application for Permit Revision/Renewal 

Form OP-2-Table 1 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

 
Date:  01/17/2024 

Permit No.:  O-2551 

Regulated Entity No.:  RN100216977 

Company Name:  BASF TOTALEnergies Petrochemicals LLC 

For Submissions to EPA 

Has an electronic copy of this application been submitted (or is being submitted) to EPA?  YES  NO 

I. Application Type 

Indicate the type of application: 

 Renewal 

 Streamlined Revision (Must include provisional terms and conditions as explained in the instructions.) 

 Significant Revision 

 Revision Requesting Prior Approval 

 Administrative Revision 

 Response to Reopening 

II. Qualification Statement 

For SOP Revisions Only  YES  NO 

For GOP Revisions Only  YES  NO 
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TCEQ-10059 (APDG 5722v26, revised 03/22) OP-2 
This form is for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and 
may be revised periodically. (Title V release 03/10) Page _____ of ______  
 

Federal Operating Permit Program 
Application for Permit Revision/Renewal 

Form OP-2-Table 1 (continued) 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

 
III. Major Source Pollutants (Complete this section if the permit revision is due to a change at the site or change in regulations.) 

Indicate all pollutants for which the site is a major source based on the site’s potential to emit: 
(Check the appropriate box[es].) 

 VOC  NOX  SO2  PM10  CO  Pb  HAP 

Other:  GHG 

IV. Reference Only Requirements (For reference only) 

Has the applicant paid emissions fees for the most recent agency fiscal year (September 1 - August 31)?  YES  NO  N/A 

V. Delinquent Fees and Penalties 

Notice:  This form will not be processed until all delinquent fees and/or penalties owed to the TCEQ or the Office of the Attorney General on behalf 
of the TCEQ are paid in accordance with the Delinquent Fee and penalty protocol. 
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Date: 01/17/2024
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
Incorporate the Permit 36644 alteration dated June 14, 2023, into the Title V 
operation permit. 

4 ADMIN-G No N/A 36644
Incorporate the Alternative Method of Control (AMOC) Plan, AMOC No. 220 dated 
April 28, 2023, into the Title V operation permit.

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

Omit NSPS NNN requirements.  The source is subject to 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart G 
and 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart YY. 

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

12 ADMIN-A No D-3730X OP-2 36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1
Update Unit ID to coincide with facility records.  Replace Unit ID D-3780X with D-
3730X.

13 MS-C No B-7240
OP-2

OP-UA6
36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1

Add 40 CFR 63 Subpart DDDDD detailed rules to B-7240 for compliance with 63 
Subpart DDDDD.

14 MS-C No B-7280
OP-2

OP-UA6
36644, GHGPSDTX3, PSDTX903M5, 

N007M1
Add 40 CFR 63 Subpart DDDDD detailed rules to B-7280 for compliance with 63 
Subpart DDDDD.

15 MS-C No B-7290
OP-2

OP-UA6
36644, GHGPSDTX3, PSDTX903M5, 

N007M1
Add 40 CFR 63 Subpart DDDDD detailed rules to B-7290 for compliance with 63 
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
may be revised periodically. (Title V revised 03/10) 15



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

Add storage vessel to GRPSV1K.  Unit ID TK-5273 has the same regulatory 
applicability as GRPSV1K.

29 MS-C Yes TK-5273X
OP-2

OP-SUMR
106.472/09/04/2000

Add storage vessel to GRPSV1K.  Unit ID TK-5273X has the same regulatory 
applicability as GRPSV1K.

30 MS-C Yes TK-5510 
OP-2

OP-SUMR
36644, PSDTX903M5, N007M1

Add storage vessel to GRPSV1K.  Unit ID TK-5510 has the same regulatory 
applicability as GRPSV1K.

31 MS-C Yes T233674
OP-2

OP-SUMR
106.371/09/04/2000

Add storage vessel to GRPSV1K.  Unit ID T233674 has the same regulatory 
applicability as GRPSV1K.

32 MS-C Yes T233676
OP-2

OP-SUMR
106.371/09/04/2000

Add storage vessel to GRPSV1K.  Unit ID T233676 has the same regulatory 
applicability as GRPSV1K.

33 MS-C Yes T113596
OP-2

OP-SUMR
106.472/09/04/2000

Add storage vessel to GRPSV1K.  Unit ID T131632 has the same regulatory 
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
may be revised periodically. (Title V revised 03/10) 16



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

Add storage vessel to GRPSV1K.  Unit ID T280047 has the same regulatory 
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
Add storage vessel.  Provide unit attribute information on Form OP-UA3.  Add 
negative 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart Kb applicability.

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
may be revised periodically. (Title V revised 03/10) 17



Federal Operating Permit Program
Application for Permit Revision/Renewal

Form OP-2-Table 3
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality

Date: 01/17/2024

Permit No: O-2551

Regulated Entity No.: 100216977

Company Name : BASF TOTALEnergies Petrochemicals LLC

I.     SIGNIFICANT REVISION (Complete this section if you are submitting a significant revision application or a renewal application that includes a significant revision.)

A. Is the site subject to bilingual requirements pursuant to 30 TAC § 122.322? YES NO

B. Indicate the alternate language(s) in which public notice is required:

C. Will there be a change in air pollutant emissions as a result of the significant revision? YES NO

TCEQ-10059 (APDG 5722v26, revised 03/22) OP-2  
This form is for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and
may be revised periodically. (Title V revised 03/10) 18



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

01/17/2024 O-2551 100216977

Unit / 
Process 

AI

Unit/Process
Applicable Form Name/ Description

Unit / Process 
Revision No. ID No. 30 TAC Chapter 116/ 30 

TAC Chapter 106

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
may be revised periodically. 19



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
may be revised periodically. 20



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

106.472/09/04/200020Y104 Poly Inhibitor Tank

OP-2
OP-SUMR
OP-UA3

OP-REQ2

TK-4020

TCEQ-10344 (APDG 5767v7, Revised 05/20) OP-SUMR
This form is for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and
may be revised periodically. 21



Regulated Entity No.

100216977

Revision No. ID No. Group AI Group ID No.

21 T270596 A GRPINORGSV

22 TK-7401 A GRPINORGSV

23 TK-7601 A GRPINORGSV

24 TK-2493 A GRPINORGSV

25 TK-2491 A GRPINORGSV

26 TK-9604 A GRPINORGSV

27 TK-9801 A GRPINORGSV

Date Permit No. 

1/17/2024 O-2551

Applicable Form

OP-2
OP-SUMR

OP-2
OP-SUMR

OP-2
OP-SUMR

OP-2
OP-SUMR

OP-2
OP-SUMR

OP-2
OP-SUMR

OP-2
OP-SUMR

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality
Federal Operating Permit Program

Individual Unit Summary for Revisions
Form OP-SUMR

Table 2

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

28 TK-5273 A GRPSV1K

29 TK-5273X A GRPSV1K

30 TK-5510 A GRPSV1K

31 T233674 A GRPSV1K

32 T233676 A GRPSV1K

33 T113596 A GRPSV1K

34 T131632 A GRPSV1K

35 T280047 A GRPSV1K

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
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BASF TotalEnergies Petrochemical LLC   O-2551 Renewal and Revision 
Port Arthur, Jefferson County, Texas  January 2024 
    
 

IV. Unit Attribute Forms 

The following unit attribute forms are included in this section: 
 

 OP-UA3:  STORAGE TANK/VESSEL ATTRIBUTES 

 OP-UA6:  BOILER/STEAM GENERATOR/STEAM GENERATING UNIT 
ATTRIBUTES 

 OP-UA15:  EMISSION POINT/STATIONARY VENT/DISTILLATION 
OPERATION VENT/PROCESS VENT ATTRIBUTES 
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TCEQ - 10008 (APD-ID37v5, Revised 07/23) OP-UA3 
This form is for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and may be revised periodically. (Title V Release 07/23) Page ______ of _____ 

Storage Tank/Vessel Attributes 
Form OP-UA3 (Page 4) 

Federal Operating Permit Program 
Table 4a: Title 30 Texas Administrative Code Chapter 115 (30 TAC Chapter 115) 

Subchapter B: Storage of Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs) 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

Date Permit No. Regulated Entity No. 

01/17/2024 O-2551 RN-100216977 

Unit ID No. 
SOP/GOP 
Index No. 

Alternate Control 
Requirement ACR ID No. Product Stored 

Storage 
Capacity Throughput 

Potential to 
Emit 

Uncontrolled 
Emissions 

TK-1501 R5112 No VOC1 A1K-25K 

TK-2210 R5112 No VOC1 A1K-25K 

TK-2620 R5112 No VOC1 A1K-25K 

TK-4020 R5112 No VOC1 A1K-25K 

T241176 R5112 No VOC1 A1K-25K 
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TCEQ - 10008 (APD-ID37v5, Revised 07/23) OP-UA3 
This form is for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and may be revised periodically. (Title V Release 07/23) Page ______ of _____ 
 

Storage Tank/Vessel Attributes 
Form OP-UA3 (Page 5) 

Federal Operating Permit Program 
Table 4b: Title 30 Texas Administrative Code Chapter 115 (30 TAC Chapter 115) 

Subchapter B: Storage of Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs) 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

 
Date Permit No. Regulated Entity No. 

01/17/2024 O-2551 RN-100216977 
 

Unit ID No. 
SOP/GOP 
Index No. 

Construction 
Date 

Tank 
Description 

True Vapor 
Pressure Primary Seal Secondary Seal 

Control Device 
Type 

Control Device 
ID No. 

TK-1501 R5112  NONE1 1-     

TK-2210 R5112  NONE1 1-     

TK-2620 R5112  NONE1 1-     

TK-4020 R5112  NONE1 1-     

T241176 R5112  NONE1 1-     
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TCEQ-10026 (APD-ID 40v2.0, revised 09/23) OP-UA6 
This form is for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements 
and may be revised periodically. (Title V Release 09/23) Page ______ of ______ 

Boiler/Steam Generator/Steam Generating Unit Attributes 
Form OP-UA6 (Page 37) 

Federal Operating Permit Program 
Table 14a:  Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 63 (40 CFR Part 63) 

Subpart DDDDD:  Industrial, Commercial, and Institutional Boilers 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

 
Date Permit No. Regulated Entity No. 

01/17/2024 O-2551 RN100216977 
 

Unit ID No. SOP/GOP Index No. Commence Table Applicability HCl Emission HCl-CMS 

B-7240 63DDDDD EXIST T3.3G1   

B-7280 63DDDDD EXIST T3.3G1   

B-7290 63DDDDD EXIST T3.3G1   

N-12 63DDDDD EXIST T3.3G1   

N-13 63DDDDD EXIST T3.3G1   
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     Page ____ of ____ 

Emission Point/Stationary Vent/Distillation Operation Vent/Process Vent Attributes 
Form OP-UA15 (Page 3) 

Federal Operating Permit Program 
Table 2a:  Title 30 Texas Administrative Code Chapter 115 (30 TAC Chapter 115) 

Subchapter B:  Vent Gas Control 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

 

Date Permit No. Regulated Entity No. 

01/17/2024 O-2551 RN100216977 
 

Emission Point 
ID No. 

SOP/GOP 
Index No. 

Chapter 115 
Division 

Combustion 
Exhaust Vent Type 

Total 
Uncontrolled 
VOC Weight 

Combined 
24-Hour 

VOC Weight 
VOC 

Concentration 

VOC 
Concentration or 
Emission Rate at 

Maximum 
Operating 
Conditions 

N-15 R5121-AMOC NO NO REGVAPPL    NO 

N-15A R5121-AMOC NO NO REGVAPPL    NO 
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Page ____ of ____ 

Emission Point/Stationary Vent/Distillation Operation Vent/Process Vent Attributes 
Form OP-UA15 (Page 4) 

Federal Operating Permit Program 
Table 2b:  Title 30 Texas Administrative Code Chapter 115 (30 TAC Chapter 115) 

Subchapter B:  Vent Gas Control 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

Date Permit No. Regulated Entity No. 

01/17/2024 O-2551 RN100216977 

Emission Point ID No. SOP Index No. 
Alternate Control 

Requirement ACR ID No. Control Device Type Control Device ID No. 

N-15 R5121-AMOC ALTED AMOC No. 220 

N-15A R5121-AMOC ALTED AMOC No. 220 

29



BASF TotalEnergies Petrochemical LLC   O-2551 Renewal and Revision 
Port Arthur, Jefferson County, Texas  January 2024 
    
 

V. Applicability Forms 

The following applicability forms are included in this section: 
 

 OP-REQ1:  APPLICATION AREA-WIDE APPLICABILITY 
DETERMINATIONS AND GENERAL INFORMATION 

 OP-REQ2:  NEGATIVE APPLICABLE REQUIREMENT DETERMINATIONS 

  

30



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

31



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

32



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

33



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

34



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

35



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

36



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

37



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

38



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

39



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

40



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

41



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

42



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

43



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

44



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

45



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

46



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

47



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

48



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

61



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

62



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

63



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

64



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

65



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

66



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

67



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

68



01/17/2024

O-2551
RN100216977

69



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

70



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

71



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

72



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

73



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

74



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

75



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

76



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

77



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

78



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

79



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

80



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

81



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

82



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

83



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

84



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

85



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

86



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

87



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

88



01/17/2024

RN100216977

O-2551

89



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

90



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

91



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

92



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

93



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

94



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

95



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

96



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

97



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

98



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

99



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

100



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

101



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

102



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

103



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

104



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

Subpart XX, Subpart ZZZZ, and Subpart DDDDD

105



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

106



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

107



 
 

 

 

01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

40 CFR 63, Subpart XX and Subpart YY

108



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

109



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

110



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

111



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

112



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

113



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

114



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

115



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

116



01/17/2024

O-2551

RN100216977

GHGPSDTX3* 08/24/2012 GHG

PSDTX903M5 08/10/2023 VOC, NOx, CO, PM, HAPS

N007M1 08/10/2023 VOC, NOx

36644 08/10/2023

AMOC 220 04/28/2023

117



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

106.261 09/04/2000

106.261 11/1/2003

106.262 9/4/2000

106.262 11/1/2003

106.263 11/1/2001
106.371 9/4/2000

106.454 9/4/2000

106.472 9/4/2000

106.473 9/4/2000

106.478 9/4/2000

118



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
1/17/2024

Permit No. 
O-2551

This source has a capacity greater than 39,890 gallons (151 m3) 
and stores a liquid with a maximum true vapor pressure less 
than 0.5 psia (3.5 kPa).

§63.110(d)(4)

§63.1100(g)(2)(ii)

Group 1 process vent subject to 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart G and 
40 CFR Part 60, Subpart NNN, must comply with 40 CFR, Part 
63, Subpart G.

Process Vent subject to MACT YY and NSPS NNN are required 
to comply with process vent requirements of MACT YY. 

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

Negative Applicability/Superseded 
Requirement Reason

§60.110b(a) This source has a capacity of less than 19,800 gallons (75 m3).

60.700(a)

The source does not  produce any products listed in NSPS RRR.  
In addition, this source is not a process vent, but rather a 
wastewater treatment vent  subject to 40 CFR 63, Part YY as it 
is part of Unit ID HONWWTP.

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
may be revised periodically (Title V Release 10/07) 119



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

NSPS Kb §60.110b(a) This source has a capacity of less than 19,800 gallons (75 m3).

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
may be revised periodically (Title V Release 10/07) 120



BASF TotalEnergies Petrochemical LLC   O-2551 Renewal and Revision 
Port Arthur, Jefferson County, Texas  January 2024 
    
 

VI. New Source Review Form 

The following form is required to summarize any Permit By Rule authorizations: 
 

 OP-PBRSUP: PERMIT BY RULE SUPPLEMENTAL TABLE 
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

N-15 / N-15A 170435 106.261  10/07/2022 

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

TK-7401  106.472 9/4/2000 

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

TK-7401  106.472 9/4/2000 Maintain a record of the material stored.  

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

Emily Lindley, Commissioner

Bobby Janecka, Commissioner

Erin E. Chancellor, Interim Executive Director

TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
Protecting Texas by Reducing and Preventing Pollution

RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED ####

April 28, 2023
MR JOHN LYCAN
VICE PRESIDENT PORT ARTHUR SITE
BASF TOTALENERGIES PETROCHEMICALS LLC
PO BOX 2506
PORT ARTHUR TX  77643-2506

Re: Alternative Method of Control (AMOC) No. 220
Multipoint Ground Flare
Chapter 115 Alternative Control
Regulated Entity Number:  RN100216977
Customer Reference Number:  CN604166967
Associated Permit Numbers: 36644, PSDTX903M5,  PSDGHGTX903,  N007M1 and O2551

Dear Mr. Lycan: 

This correspondence is in response to BASF TOTALEnergies Petrochemicals LLC’s (BASF’s) January 
27, 2023 request to use a high-pressure multipoint ground flare (MPGF) to control emissions from 
streams regulated under 30 TAC Chapter 115 Subchapter B: Division 2 Vent Gas Control and Division 6: 
Batch Processes through the AMOC process in §§ 115.910-916. 

The MPGF system provides safe control of hydrocarbon vapor streams that may result from upsets and 
emergency events or planned maintenance, startup and shutdown (MSS) activities.  We also understand 
the high-pressure operations of the MPGF will not meet the tip velocity requirements of 40 CFR §60.18.  
Based on the review of the information submitted, performance testing demonstrates proper flare 
operation, cross-lighting, flame stability, smokeless operation, and greater than 98% destruction rate 
effectiveness (DRE) is expected for the high-pressure operations of the MPGF system.

The Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) Executive Director has made a final decision to 
approve your AMOC request.  The conditions upon which the MPGF system is approved are attached to 
this correspondence.  Please maintain these conditions along with all related records.  

The TCEQ has been delegated authority to enforce the above cited standards and is authorized to 
approve this AMOC.  You are reminded that approval of any AMOC shall not abrogate the Executive 
Director or Administrator's authority under the Act or in any way prohibit later canceling the AMOC.  By 
copy of this letter we are informing the Environmental Protection Agency, Region 6, of this decision in 
accordance with 30 TAC Chapter 115.

This AMOC approval may supersede certain requirements or representations in Permit Nos. 36644, 
PSDTX903M5,  PSDGHGTX903,  N007M1.  To ensure effective and consistent enforceability, we request 
that BASF incorporate this AMOC into the permit(s) through submittal of alteration(s) no later than 90 
days after this approval.

This approval may also change applicable requirements for the site, which are identified in the site 
operating permit (SOP) O2551.  The TCEQ recommends the submittal of a SOP administrative revision if 
any changes are necessary.  Changes meeting the criteria for an administrative revision can be operated 
before issuance of the revision if a complete application is submitted to the TCEQ and this information is 
maintained with the SOP records at the site.

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

Re:  Permit Numbers:  79052, GHGPSDTX3, N018M2, PSDTX903M5, and O2551

If you need further information or have any questions, please contact Ms. Anne Inman, P.E. at (512) 239-
1276 or write to the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality, Office of Air, Air Permits Division, MC-
163, P.O. Box 13087, Austin, Texas 78711-3087.

Sincerely,

 

Samuel Short, Deputy Director
Air Permits Division
Office of Air
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality

cc: Air Section Manager, Region 10 - Beaumont
Jesse E. Chacon, P.E., Manager, Operating Permits Section, Air Permits Division, OA: MC-163
Becky Tsuchiya, Manager, Chemical New Source Review Permits Section, Air Permits Division, 

OA: MC-163
Air Permits Section Chief, New Source Review Section (6PD-R), U.S. Environmental Protection 

Agency, Region 6, Dallas

Project Number:  353029
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